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Disclaimer Regarding Forward-Looking Statements  
This  repor t  not  on ly desc r ibes the past  and presen t  
fac ts  about  Toyobo Co. ,  L td .  and i ts  a ff i l ia tes  
( together,  the “Toyobo Group” )  but  a lso pro jec ts  
fu ture bus iness  per formance and forecasts  the  
fu ture bus iness envi ronment .  Such pro jec t ions 
inc lude assumpt ions and evaluat ions that  were 
developed based on in format ion that  Toyobo was  
able to  obta in  as of  the t ime th is  repor t  was 
prepared and,  thus,  con ta in  unknown as wel l  as  
known r isks  and uncer ta in t ies .  Consequent l y,  
there is  a  poss ib i l i t y  that  these r isks  and  
uncer ta in t ies  wi l l  render the p ro jec t ions and  
forecasts  inaccurate and resul t  in  ac tua l  fu ture  
bus iness per formance  and a  fu ture  bus iness 
envi ronment  s ign i f ican t ly d i f ferent  f rom the  
pro jec t ions and forecasts  presented in  th is  repor t .  
Readers  are  thus advised to  exerc ise caut ion .  The  
pro jec t ions of  fu ture  bus iness per formance and  
forecasts  o f  the fu ture bus iness envi ronment  tha t  
are found  in  th is  repor t  were developed based on  
in format ion that  our  corporat ion was ab le to  obta in  
a t  the t ime the descr ip t ions were wr i t ten .  These 
pro jec t ions and forecasts ,  therefore,  conta in  
e lements  of  uncer ta in ty.  Moreover,  there  is  a  
poss ib i l i ty  that  la tent  r isks  that  have the potent ia l  
to  render  such pro jec t ions and forecasts  
inaccurate wi l l  mate r ia l ize.  Please be fu l l y advised  
that ,  in  the fu tu re,  ac tua l  bus iness per formance  
and the actua l  bus iness envi ronment  could tu rn ou t  
to  be d i f ferent  f rom the pro jec t ions and  forecasts  
presented in  th is  repor t .  
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
Overview of  Fiscal  Year Ended March 31,  2020  
As for  the g lobal  economy surrounding the Toyobo Group (here inaf te r  the “Group” )  in  the f isca l  year  
ended March 31,  2020 ,  despi te  gradual  economic  expans ion supported by low in terest  ra tes in  the  
f i rs t  ha l f  o f  the f isca l  year ,  concerns about  def la t ion rose g lobal l y in  the second hal f  o f  the f isca l  
year  as  a  resu l t  o f  fac tors  such as the s lowdown of  the Chinese economy due to  i ts t rade  f r ic t ion  
wi th  the Uni ted States.  At  the end of  the f isca l  year ,  economic act i v i t y s tagnated,  inc lud ing the  
movement  o f  people,  and confus ion was created  in  f inanc ia l  markets  due  to  fac tors  such as the  
spread of  the novel  coronavi rus  d isease (COVID-19).  
 
Amid th is  operat ing  envi ronment ,  the Group  focused on “F i lms & Coat ings, ”  “Mobi l i t y , ”  and 
“Heal thcare  & W el lness,”  which were set  as  the growth f ie ld  targe ts  in  the 2018 Medium-Term 
Management  Plan.  In  par t icu lar ,  in  “F i lms & Coat ings, ”  notwi ths tanding a d i f f icu l t  externa l  
envi ronment ,  sa les  of  po lar ize r  protect i ve f i lms for  LCDs “COSMOSHINE SRF” grew s teadi l y.  In  
addi t ion,  in  order  to  fu r ther  so l id i fy  the foundat ion  of  the f i lms bus iness,  the Group acqui red a l l  the  
s tock of  two subs id iar ies  he ld  by TEIJ IN LIMITED as of  October  1 ,  2019 and commenced to  
in tegrate the  management .  
 
The s tagnat ion of  the g lobal  economy caused by the spread of  COVID-19  began to  a f fec t  the 
Group’s  var ious bus iness act iv i t ies  such as these assoc ia ted wi th  i ts  automobi le-re la ted products .  
On the  other  hand,  in  response to  requests  f rom test ing ins t i tu t ions,  e tc . ,  the product ion o f  reagents  
for  PCR tests  for  COVID-19 great l y increased.  
 
As a resu l t ,  consol idated net  sa les  in  the f isca l  year  ended March 31,  2020 increased ¥2.9 b i l l ion  
(0 .9%)  over  the p revious f isca l  year ,  to  ¥339 .6 b i l l i on.  Operat ing  prof i t  increased ¥1.1 b i l l ion (4 .9%)  
to  ¥22.8 b i l l ion,  o rd inary prof i t  increased ¥0 .2 b i l l i on (1 .4%) to  ¥18.0 b i l l ion ,  and prof i t  a t t r ibutab le  
to  owners  o f  parent  to ta led ¥13.8 b i l l ion as a resu l t  o f  record ing  ¥10.6 b i l l ion in  ext raord inary 
income for  insurance received fo r  the f i re  acc ident  (Compared wi th  loss at t r ibutab le  to  owners  of  
parent  o f  ¥0 .6 b i l l ion fo r  the previous f isca l  year ) .  
 
Resul ts  by bus iness segment  were as fo l lows:  
 
 
Fi lms and Functional  Polymers  
In  th is  segment ,  sa les  and operat ing prof i t  increased f rom the previous f isca l  year  due to  the growth  
in  both the f i lms bus iness and the funct ional  po lymers bus iness. 
 
In  the  f i lms bus iness,  the packaging f i lm  bus iness achieved  growth  in  sa les of  the envi ronmenta l l y  
consc ious products  as a resu l t  o f  r is ing  eco-consc iousness around the wor ld .  The indust r ia l  f i lm 
bus iness achieved s teady expans ion in  sa les to  major  po lar i zer  manufac turers  as a resu l t  o f  
improved p roduct i v i t y o f  po lar ize r  protect i ve  f i lms for  LCDs “COSMOSHINE SRF, ”  despi te  mold 
re leas ing f i lm for  MLCC “COSMOPEEL” be ing a f fec ted by p roduct ion ad justments  of  
e lec t ron ic-re la ted  components .  
 
In  the funct ional  po lymers bus iness,  amid a decrease in  product ion of  au tomobi les  g lobal ly,  
engineer ing p las t ics  fe l t  the impact  o f  the shutdown by automobi le  manufacturers  due to  the spread  
of  COVID-19.  Fur thermore,  sa les s t ruggled to  increase for  po lymers fo r  use in  machine too ls  in  
China.  Sales of  the adhes ion promoter  fo r  po lyo le f in  “HARDLEN” grew in  overseas markets .  
 
As a resu l t ,  sa les  in  th is  segment  increased ¥2.6  b i l l ion (1 .7%)  f rom the  previous f isca l  year  to  
¥158.8 b i l l ion,  and operat ing prof i t  inc reased ¥2 .8 b i l l ion (20.5%) to  ¥16 .5 b i l l ion.  
 
 
Industria l  Materia ls  
In  th is  segment ,  sa les  and operat ing p rof i t  decreased f rom the previous f isca l  year  owing to  the 
ef fec t  o f  the f i re  acc iden t  and a decrease in  demand. 
 
Simi lar  to  engineer ing p las t ics ,  the a i rbag fabr ics  bus iness faced chal lenges due to  the impact  o f  
the f i re  acc ident  on  s lowing down product ion in  the automobi le  industry.  In  the h igh-per formance 
f ibers  bus iness,  sa les of  “ IZANAS” grew pr imar i l y for  use in  ropes,  and sa les of  “ZYLON”  expanded  
for  use in  b icyc le  t i res  and other  use.  In  the l i fe  and industr ia l  mater ia ls  bus iness,  the new p lan t  
s tar ted up in  September 2019,  and manufacture  and sa les of  funct ional  cushion mater ia l  
“BREATHAIR” resumed.  
 
As a resu l t ,  sa les in  th is  segment  decreased ¥1.1 b i l l ion (1 .7%)  f rom the  same per iod of  the  
previous f isca l  year  to  ¥65.4 b i l l ion,  and operat ing prof i t  decreased ¥1.6  b i l l ion (60.5%)  to  ¥1.0  
b i l l ion.  
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Healthcare  
In  th is  segment ,  sa les  and operat ing p rof i t  increased f rom the previous f isca l  year  as  the 
membranes & envi ronment  bus iness was s teady overa l l  despi te  increased expenses in  the 
b io-sc ience & medica l  bus iness.  
The b io-sc ience & medica l  bus iness mainta ined st rong sa les of  enzymes for  d iagnost ic  reagents  to  
overseas markets ,  but  the contract  manufactur ing bus iness of  pharmaceut ica ls  p i led up costs  for  
compl iance wi th  Good Manufactur ing Pract ice (GMP;  s tandards fo r  manufactur ing and qual i t y 
contro l  o f  pharmaceut ica ls  and others . )  
 
In  the membranes & envi ronment  bus iness,  sa les  of  funct ional  f i l te rs  for  appl icat ions such as off ice 
machinery decreased.  However,  sa les  of  vo la t i le  organic  compound (VOC) emiss ions t reatment  
equipment  for  recover ing so lven ts  increased  s ign i f icant ly  in  assoc ia t ion  wi th  the s t rengthening  of  
envi ronmenta l  regulat ions overseas such as in  China.  
 
As a resu l t ,  sa les  in  th is  segment  increased ¥4.7  b i l l ion (13.7%)  f rom the  previous f isca l  year  to  
¥39.4 b i l l ion,  and operat ing prof i t  increased  ¥0.4  b i l l ion (7 .3%)  to  ¥5.5 b i l l ion. 
 
 
Texti les and Trading  
In  th is  segment ,  sa les  and operat ing p rof i t  decreased f rom the previous f isca l  year .  
 
Sales vo lume o f  mater ia l s  for  t rad i t i onal  Arabic  menswear increased as market  condi t ions 
recovered,  and sa les of  mater ia ls  for  un i forms grew s teadi ly in  those used for  bus iness un i forms.  
On the other  hand,  sa les  of  mater ia ls  for  inner  wear and acryl ic  f iber  were s luggish due to  the impact  
o f  f luc tuat ions in  raw mater ia l  pr ices and the impact  o f  the spread  of  COVID-19 ,  resu l t ing in  a  
decrease in  expor ts  to  China and d isrupt ion o f  the country ’s  supply  chain .  
 
As a resu l t ,  sa les  in  th is  segment  decreased ¥3.3 b i l l ion (5 .0%)  f rom the  previous f isca l  year  to  
¥61.3 b i l l ion,  and operat ing prof i t  decreased ¥0.4 b i l l ion (38.6%) to  ¥0.6  b i l l ion. 
 
 
Real  Estate and Other  Businesses  
This  segment  inc ludes in f ras t ructure -re la ted  bus inesses,  such as rea l  es tate,  engineer ing,  
in format ion process ing services,  and log is t ics  services.  Resul ts  in  these bus inesses were genera l l y  
in  l ine wi th  p lans.  As a resu l t ,  to ta l  sa les  in  these bus inesses decreased ¥0.0 b i l l ion (0 .2%) f rom the 
previous f isca l  year  to  ¥14.6 b i l l ion,  and operat ing prof i t  increased  ¥0.4 b i l l ion (17.5%) to  ¥2.6 
b i l l ion.  
 
 
Cash Flows 
Net cash proceeded by operat ing act iv i t ies  amounted to  ¥44.3 b i l l ion at  the end of  the subject  f isca l  
year.  Th is  was due main ly to  a  cash increase of  deprec ia t ion of  ¥17 .0 b i l l ion and a prof i t  before  
income taxes of  ¥19.7 b i l l ion.  
 
Net  cash used  in  invest ing act iv i t i es  amounted to  ¥39.2 b i l l ion.  Th is  was  due main ly  to  purchase of  
proper ty,  p lant  and equipment  and in tangib le  assets  o f  ¥30.9 b i l l ion.  
 
Net  cash used in  f inanc ing act iv i t ies  amounted to  ¥1.8 b i l l ion.  Th is  was due main ly to  ne t  decrease  
in  shor t - term loans payable of  ¥13.5 b i l l ion,  redempt ion of  bonds of  ¥10.0 b i l l ion,  cash d iv idends  
pa id of  ¥3.6 b i l l ion  and proceeds f rom insurance  of  bonds of  ¥25.0 b i l l ion.  
 
As a resu l t ,  the ba lance  of  cash and  cash equiva lents  a t  the end  of  the subject  f isca l  year  (March  
31,  2020) s tood  at  ¥25.1 b i l l ion,  an increase o f  ¥2 .9 b i l l ion f rom the end o f  the previous f isca l  year  
(March  31,  2019) .  
 
 
Assets,  Liabi l i t ies and Net Assets  
Tota l  assets  a t  the end o f  the subject  f isca l  year  (March 31,  2020)  increased ¥27.8 b i l l ion (6 .0%)  
f rom the end of  the p revious f isca l  year  (March 31,  2019)  to  ¥488 .9 b i l l ion .  Th is  was due main ly  to  
an increase of  ¥23.0  b i l l ion in  proper ty,  p lant  and equipment  resu l t ing f rom a r ise in  capi ta l  
spending and an increase of  ¥4.3 b i l l ion in  e lec t ron ica l ly recorded monetary c la ims.   
 
Tota l  l iab i l i t ies  increased  ¥26.4 b i l l ion (9 .4%)  to  ¥306.2 b i l l ion.  Th is  was due main ly to  an increase  
of  ¥15.0 b i l l ion in  bonds payable and  an increase of  ¥3.4 b i l l ion in  l iab i l i t ies  for  re t i rement  benef i t .  
 
Tota l  ne t  assets  a t  the  end of  the f isca l  year  ended March  31,  2020 inc reased ¥1.4 b i l l ion (0 .8%) 
compared to  the previous f isca l  year  to  ¥182.6 b i l l ion.  Th is  was due main ly to  an increase of  ¥10.1  
b i l l ion in  re ta ined  earn ings despi te  a  decrease of  ¥8.8 b i l l ion in  o ther  comprehens ive  income such  
as va luat ion d i f ference on avai lab le  for  sa le  secur i t ies .  
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Forecast  for  Fiscal  Year Ending March 31,  2021 
Regard ing the bus iness envi ronment  for  the f isca l  year  ending March 31,  2021,  i t  is  expected  tha t  
the g lobal  economy inc lud ing Japan wi l l  s ign i f icant ly s tagnate due to  the spread of  COVID-19,  and  
i t  wi l l  take a  cons iderable t ime for  economic act i v i t ies  to  re turn  to  normal .  
 
Going fo rward ,  there  are  concerns that  the Group’s  var ious bus inesses wi l l  be af fec ted  by a 
decrease in  g lobal  automobi le  product ion,  a  dec rease in  demand for  e lec t ron ic  devices such as 
smartphones,  a  decrease in  personal  consumpt ion and supply  chain d is rupt ions.  As a 
countermeasure,  the Group wi l l  s t r i ve to  min imize the  impact  by  work ing on in i t ia t i ves such as 
f lexib le  inventory and p roduct ion ad justments .  
 
On the other  hand,  the Group wi l l  ac t i ve ly contr ibute to  soc ie ty through the provis ion of  reagents  
for  PCR tests ,  tes t ing k i t s  for  COVID-19  ( reagents  for  research) ,  e tc .  
 
As i t  is  d i f f icu l t  to  proper ly and rat ional l y ca lcu la te  the impact  on bus iness in  th is  s i tuat ion where  
the end of  COVID-19 cannot  be pred ic ted,  the  forecast  for  the  f isca l  year  ending March 31,  2021 has  
not  been forecasted.  W hi le  observing fu tu re t rends,  the Group wi l l  prompt l y make an announcement  
when a proper  and rat ional  ca lcu la t ion becomes poss ib le .  
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Management Pol icy,  Business Envi ronment,  Issues to be Addressed 
With regard to  mat ters  concern ing the  fu tu re in  the text ,  the  Group made judgments  as at  the  end  
of  the f isca l  year  under review,  and no assurance is  g iven as to  the accuracy.  
 
 
1.  Basic Management Pol icy 
The Group  has adopted “Jun-Ri -Soku-Yu (順理則裕 ) ”  as  our  corporate  ph i losophy.  Th is  mot to ,  which 
means “Do what  must  be  done,  don’ t  do what  must  not  be done.  Adher ing  to  “Jun-Ri ”  leads to  a  
prosperous soc ie ty whi le  a lso rea l iz ing se l f -g rowth. ”  was a personal  maxim of  our  founder,  the Mei j i  
Era industr ia l is t  E i ich i  Shibusawa.  The Group  has inher i ted the idea  of  so-ca l led CSV (Creat ing  
Shared Value:  contr ibu t ing to  so lu t ions for  soc ia l  chal lenges and work ing  to  improve economic 
va lue to  increase the corporate va lue)  for  approximate ly 140 years  s ince i ts  foundat ion.  
 
Toyobo Co. ,  L td .  s tar ted wi th  the cot ton sp inn ing bus iness in  1882,  entered in to  the synthet ic  f ibers  
bus iness in  the 1960s,  and fur thermore,  has developed accumulated technolog ies and know-how 
in to  spec ia l ty bus inesses inc lud ing f i lms.  As such,  the Group has changed the bus iness por t fo l io  
s ign i f icant ly by concentrat ing manager ia l  resources on bus iness that  can contr ibute to  so lu t ions fo r  
soc ia l  chal lenges in  response to  changes in  the wor ld .  
 
In  2019,  the Group retu rned to  i ts  or ig ina l  s tar t ing po in t  o f  the  sp i r i t  o f  Ei ich i  Shibusawa and 
rearranged i ts  “Jun-Ri -Soku-Yu (順理則裕 ) ”  corporate ph i losophy as the corporate ph i losophy 
system 〈TOYOBO PVVs〉  so as to  become a company tha t  cont inues to  d raw a growth path through  
contr ibut ions to  soc ie ty whi le  responding to  the changes of  the t imes.  
 
〈TOYOBO PVVs〉  

Pr inc ip le  
“Jun-Ri -Soku-Yu (順理則裕 ) ”  (Adher ing  to  reason  leads to  prosper i ty)  

Vis ion 
We wi l l  cont inue  to  c reate the so lu t ions needed by people and  the  ear th  wi th  our  mater ia ls  
and sc ience.  

Values 
We welcome change,  en joy change,  and create change. 

TOYOBO Spi r i t :  Chal lenge,  Rel iab i l i t y ,  Col laborat ion 
 
In  order  to  ach ieve the corporate ph i losophy system, the Group reorganized i tse l f  in to  a  
so lu t ion-based organizat ional  s t ruc ture  or iented  to  end customers and  markets  in  Apr i l  2020,  and  
wi l l  enhance the formula t ion of  long-term growth scenar ios  and the market ing funct ion.  In  addi t ion,  
the Group wi l l  work  to  ins t i l l  and entrench th is  co rporate ph i losophy system through the “KAERU 
Pro ject  (Kaeru means “ to  change”) , ”  the company-wide pro jec t  to  promote the Company’s  corporate  
atmosphere and work  s ty le  re forms,  so that  th is  system can be the  footho ld for  judgments  and  
act ions of  a l l  the members of  the Group.  
 
 
2.  Medium-  to  Long-Term Business Strategies  and Issues to  Be Addressed,  Target  Manageria l  

Indicators  
(1)  2018 Medium-Term Management Plan   
Under the 2018 Medium-Term Management  Plan,  e f fec t ive for  four  years  f rom the f isca l  year  ended  
March  31,  2019,  based on the  “Three Part  Harmony,”  which inc ludes  work ing to  reso lve shor t- te rm 
issues whi le  focus ing on  medium- to  long-term issues and progress ing wi th  bus iness base 
enhancements  such as  re forming the  corporate cu l ture,  the Group  has  set  the  fo l lowing three key 
in i t ia t ives.  

 
(a)  Priori t iz ing businesses and harvesting crops (short-  and medium-term)  

The Group  has numerous bus inesses subject  to  varying operat ing envi ronments .  As such,  the  
Group is  p romot ing a varying approach to  bus iness operat ions which invo lves set t ing key 
per formance ind icators  (KPIs)  ta i lo red to  c i rcumstances fac ing the respec t ive bus inesses.  The  
Group wi l l  a lso focus on invest ing corporate resources in to  bus inesses in  f ie lds  of  growth and  
increase rates of  g rowth .  
 

(b)  Enhance the development of  new products  and new businesses in  the medium- and 
long-term 
To achieve susta ined  growth,  the  Group wi l l  s t ra teg ica l ly devote  manager ia l  resources in  
medium- to  long-te rm growth f ie lds  and  s t rengthen new bus iness development  inc lud ing 
externa l  co l laborat ion .  
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(c)  Strengthen the business base 
As “safety, ”  “acc ident  prevent ion”  and “qual i t y ”  
are important  foundat ions support ing bus iness 
act iv i t ies ,  the Group con t inues to  promote 
contro l  in i t ia t i ves fo r  them as key issues.  In  
addi t ion,  the Group  wi l l  move ahead wi th  the 
corporate atmosphere  and work  s ty le  re forms 
through the company-wide “KAERU Pro ject , ”  
a iming to  bu i ld  workp laces where each 
employee can cont inue  work ing wi th  peace of  
mind and vigor .  
 
 
 
 

 
(2)  Target Managerial  Indicators in 2018  Medium-Term Management Plan   
The Group is  espec ia l ly  focus ing on operat ing p ro f i t ,  re tu rn on equi ty (ROE) and retu rn on invested  
capi ta l  (ROA) ,  which serve as i ts  manager ia l  ind icators .  I ts  numer ica l  targets  in  i ts  2018 
Medium-Term Management  Plan ( f rom the f isca l  year  ended March 31 ,  2019 to  the f isca l  year  
ending March 31,  2022) are operat ing pro f i t  amount ing to  no less than ¥30.0 b i l l ion and ROE of  a t  
least  8%. Fur thermore,  the Group has employed ROA as a per formance management  ind ic tor  in  the 
Group and  a ims to  achieve ROA of  a t  least  7%.  
 
In  assess ing i ts  f inanc ia l  pos i t ion,  the Group focuses on a “ ra t io  o f  in terest  bear ing debt  and net  
assets  (D/E Rat io)”  f rom the perspect i ve of  mainta in ing and improving  the  debt  ra t ing ,  and  ensur ing  
s tab i l i ty  in  f inanc ing,  and has set  the ta rget  o f  a  D/E rat io  o f  less than 1.0.  However,  the Group 
bel ieves that  i t  is  v i ta l  to  make investments  toward fu ture  growth at  an  appropr ia te  t ime,  and wi l l  
cont inue i ts  e f for ts  to  s t rengthen earn ings power wi thout  regard fo r  the D/E rat io  o f  1 .0  whi le  
keeping in  mind the ra t io .  
 
The fo l lowing tab le  shows major  manager ia l  ind icators  and targets  in  the 2018 Medium-Term 
Management  Plan (announced in  May 2018) and actua l  resu l ts  to  date .  Because the impact  o f  the  
spread of  the novel  coronavi rus  d isease (COVID-19)  is  uncer ta in  and assumpt ions of  the exte rna l  
envi ronment  have changed large ly,  the t iming of  ach ieving the  targets  for  f isca l  2022 may be 
de layed.  

 f isca l  2019 Resu l t s  f isca l  2020 Resu l t s  f isca l  2022 Targets  

Net  sa les                            (¥bn. )  336. 7  339. 6  375. 0  

Overseas  sa les  ra t io                (%)  30.5  32.3  35.0  

Operat ing  p ro f i t                   ( ¥bn. )  21.7  22.8  30.0  

Operat ing p ro f i t  marg in            (%)  6 .5  6 .7  8 .0  

Pro f i t  ( loss )  a t t r ibu tab le  to  
owners  o f  parent                  (¥bn. )  -0 .6  13.8  16.0  

ROE                                      (%)  -  7 .8  ≧8.0  

ROA                                      (%)  4 .7  4 .7  ≧7.0  

D/E  ra t io                                  ( - )  0 .93  0 .98  <1.0  
 

(3)  Identi fying Materia l  Topics  
In  May 2020 ,  the Group  ident i f ied mater ia l  top ics  (key issues) .  The mater ia l i ty  was sor ted out  
through quest ionnai res and hear ings f rom the Company’s  execut i ves and employees af te r  a  longl is t  
was made by re fe rence to  GRI Standards,  SASB Standards,  UN Global  Compact ,  ISO26000,  var ious  
ESG researches and o thers .  Then,  the  Group ident i f ied e ight  mate r ia l  top ics  in  l ine wi th  the  
ph i losophy system “TOYOBO PVVs.”  

 
As premises for  mater ia l i ty ,  the Group views th ree i tems of  “Corpora te governance”,  “Respect  fo r  
human r ights”  and “Safe ty,  d isaste r  prevent ion ,  qual i ty”  as  the bas ic  po in ts .  Mate r ia l  top ics  
compr ise e ight  issues,  namely “Abi l i t y  to  p rovide  so lu t ions (contr ibut ion  through our  bus iness) ” ,  
“Supply chain management” ,  “Product  l i fe  cyc le  management” ,  “Reduc ing greenhouse gas 
emiss ions” ,  “Reduc ing envi ronmenta l  impact” ,  “Human resource management” ,  “Data secur i t y,  
pr ivacy”  and  “Compl iance”.  Based on  these  mater ia l  top ics ,  the  Group  wi l l  enr ich  communicat ions  
wi th  each s takeholder .  
From now on ,  the Group  wi l l  work  to  set  targets(KPIs)  and  device  measures and manage the 
progress in  accordance  wi th  these mater ia l  top ics .  At  the  same t ime,  i t  wi l l  a lso re f lec t  the mate r ia l  
top ics  in  medium-to long- term management  p lans .  
 

- Channeling operational resources 
into growth businesses 
to produce results

- Taking responsibility for 
the future through 
proactive investments 
designed for growth going 
forward

- Implementing a project for changing
the Company’s corporate culture

Prioritizing businesses
and harvesting crops
(short- and medium- term)

Enhance the development of
new products and new businesses

in the medium- and long- term

Strengthen
the business base

- Varying and prioritizing
KPI for each business

- Corporate Philosophy “Jun-Ri-Soku-Yu”

- Safety, accident prevention 
and quality control initiatives

Three Part Harmony

Key Initiatives in 2018 Medium-Term Management Plan
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(4)  The Long- term Direct ion for the Fiscal  year ending March 31,  2026  
To rea l i ze the corporate ph i losophy system and abi l i ty  to  provide so lu t ions (contr ibut ion th rough 
our  bus iness)  in  the mater ia l  top ics ,  the Group reorganized i tse l f  in to  so lu t ion-based organizat ional  
s t ruc ture or ien ted to  end  customers and markets  f rom the previous p roduct-out- type s t ruc ture 
center ing on products  and technolog ies in  Apr i l  2020.  Pos i t ion ing “F i lms and Funct ional  Mater ia ls , ”  
“Mobi l i t y , ”  “L i fes ty le  and  Envi ronmenta l , ”  and “L i fe  Sc ience”  as growth f ie lds ,  the Group wi l l  
ac t ive ly invest  in  bus inesses that  enr ich the soc ie ty to  ach ieve  a long- term growth.  
 
Spec i f ica l ly,  a iming for  consol idated net  sa les  of  ¥500 b i l l ion in  f isca l  2026,  the Group wi l l  exp lore  
“ ideal  ways”  for  each f ie ld  shown in  the fo l lowing tab le  and accelerate the pace of  o f fer ing so lu t ions.  

D iv is ion  V is ion (cont r ibu t ion  to  so lv e  soc ia l  cha l lenges)  

F i lms  and Func t iona l  Mate r ia ls  Globa l  leader  in  eco- f r iend l y p roduc ts  and so lu t ions  

Mob i l i t y  One-of -a-k ind compan y tha t  prov ides  so lu t ions  for  
sa fe ,  secure  and comfo r tab le  mob i l i t y spaces  

L i fes t yle  and Env i ronmenta l  So lu t ion  bus iness  that  cont r ibu tes  to   
the  c reat ion  o f  comf or tab le  and hea l t hy l iv ing  env i ronments  

L i fe  Sc ience  Creat ion  o f  s ys tems to  rea l i ze  a  hea l th y soc ie t y and  
prov ide a  h igh leve l  o f  med ica l  ca re  

 
The Group a lso recognizes the ser ious r isk  posed by g lobal  warming and  c l imate change to  the 
cont inuat ion of  bus iness act iv i t ies ,  and  we a re cut t ing greenhouse gases in  product ion and log is t ics .  
We wi l l  swi tch to  natu ra l  gas in  our  fac to r ies ,  enhance product ion ef f ic iency and in t roduce 
renewable energ ies such as so lar  power.  Through these measures,  we  a im to  reduce our  
greenhouse gas emiss ions by 30% and 80% in  the f isca l  year  ending March 31,  2031 and the f isca l  
year  ending March 31,  2051,  respect i ve ly,  compared wi th  the f isca l  year  ended March 31,  2014.  
 

Greenhouse gas  reduct ion targets  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
As a  par t  o f  in i t ia t i ves  to  enhance ESG,  the  Group  expressed  i ts  support  for  recommendat ions made 
by the  Task Force on Cl imate-re la ted F inanc ia l  D isc losures (TCFD) and jo ined the “TCFD 
Consort ium” in  January 2020.  In  addi t ion ,  the Group has s igned the “UN Global  Compact”  and 
implements  act iv i t ies  wi th  cons iderat ion for  “ respect  for  human r ights , ”  “ labor , ”  “envi ronment , ”  and 
“prevent ion of  co rrupt ion  inc lud ing br ibery. ”  
 
 
3 .  Business envi ronment and each business department’s ef for ts  
As for  the  bus iness envi ronment  surrounding  the  Group,  the cur rent  g lobal  economy has s lowed 
down most  s ign i f icant l y s ince the g lobal  f inanc ia l  c r is is  t r iggered by the co l lapse of  Lehman 
Brothers  due to  the impact  o f  the spread of  COVID-19.  In  addi t ion to  a  drop in  personal  consumpt ion,  
e f fec ts  o f  the p roduct ion  cutback in  the automobi le  industry have led to  widespread s luggish 
corporate act i v i t ies .  I t  is  hard to  make a  forecast  for  the t iming  when the spread of  COVID-19 wi l l  
be conta ined,  and even i f  the spread is  conta ined  ear ly,  i t  wi l l  take cons iderable t ime for  economic 
act iv i t ies  to  re turn  to  normal .  
 
For  the Group,  the wor ldwide decrease in  p roduc t ion of  automobi les  has substant ia l ly  a f fec ted 
car- re la ted products  such as the engineer ing p las t ics  and a i rbag fabr ics  bus inesses.  Fur thermore ,  
the dec l ine in  personal  consumpt ion has af fec ted  the appare l  f ibers  bus iness and others .  As a  
countermeasure,  the  Group wi l l  shut  down some p lants  in  Japan and  overseas and advance f lexib le  
invento ry  and product ion  ad justments .  
 
In  the  operat ion  of  bus inesses,  the Group  has commit ted to  operat ing  wi th  the h ighest  p r ior i t y on  
employees ’  heal th  and safety.  Plants  cont inue product ion and sh ipment  operat ions,  fo l lowing the 
formulated in fec t ion  prevent ion measures,  measures in  the  case where a person gets  in fec ted,  and  
bus iness cont inu i ty p lan (BCP) response procedures.  Te lework ing is  recommended for  employees  
at  the head of f ice and branch of f ices,  e tc . ,  and  a  new work  s ty le  is  promoted wi th  a  target  o f  the 
of f ice at tendance rate of  20% or  less dur ing the dec larat ion of  a  s ta te  o f  emergency and 50% or  less  
even af ter  the  s ta te of  emergency dec larat ion.  
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Assuming cont ingency s i tuat ions,  the Group has been work ing to  secure that  ample funds in  hand 
and promot ing  OC 100 (Overcome Corona  100)  act iv i t ies  to  review a reduct ion in  invento r ies  and  
non-urgent  expendi tures .  
 
Whi le  responding to  the current  harsh  bus iness envi ronment ,  the Group  wi l l  advance the fo l lowing  
ef for ts  wi th  the a im o f  medium- to  long-term growth.  The descr ip t ion be low is  provided based on  
organiza t ional  categor ies  af ter  the reorganizat ion f rom Apr i l  2020.  
 
(1)  Fi lms and Functional  Materia ls Solut ions 

Vision: Global  leader in eco-f r iendly products and solut ions 
-  Sales of  po lar i ze r  protec t ive f i lms fo r  LCDs “COSMOSHINE SRF,”  which has excel lent  

non-hygroscopic i ty and durabi l i ty  as  wel l  as  pr ice compet i t iveness,  have grown s teadi ly fo r  
LCD TVs in  a  d i f f icu l t  externa l  envi ronment .  To respond to  a  fur ther  increase in  demand,  the  
Group wi l l  be p repared to  increase product ion wi th  new manufactu r ing fac i l i t ies .  

-  Sales of  ext remely smooth mold re leas ing f i lm for  MLCC “COSMOPEEL” have increased  fo r  
h igh-end products .  The product ion capac i ty wi l l  double through the in t roduct ion of  new 
process ing fac i l i t ies .  

-  In  order  to  fu r ther  so l id i f y the  foundat ion  of  the  f i lms bus iness,  the Group  acqui red a l l  the 
s tock of  two subs id iar ies  he ld  by TEIJ IN LIMITED as of  October  1 ,  2019 and commenced to  
in tegrate the  management .  The Group wi l l  ach ieve synergy ef fec ts  by enhanc ing 
cooperat ion on both  technology and  product ion aspects .  

-  W ith  respect  to  t ransparent  vapor-depos i ted  f i lm  “ECOSYAR,”  PT.TOYOBO TRIAS 
ECOSYAR in  Indones ia commences product ion and wi l l  o f fe r  the p roduct  as  f i lm that  can 
he lp to  reduce food loss in  Japan and overseas on a fu l l  sca le .  

-  The Group wi l l  work  to  expand sa les of  envi ronmenta l ly f r iendly f i lms such as f i lms for  
beverage  labels  that  uses 80% or  more recyc led PET bot t le  res in  and has the th ickness 
reduced to  ha l f  and f i lm that  uses p lant-der ived res in .  

 
S ince i t  is  important  that  the ent i re  supply chain cons iders  p las t ic  waste issues,  the Group  has  
par t ic ipated in  the Clean Ocean Mater ia l  A l l iance (CLOMA),  which a ims to  promote susta inable  
use of  p las t ic  products  and development  and in t roduct ion of  a l te rnat i ve mater ia ls ,  the Ci rcu la r  
Economy for  F lexib le  Packaging (CEFLEX),  a  consor t ium that  pursues the rea l izat ion of  c i rcu lar  
economy in  the sof t  packaging industry in  Europe ,  and Petcore Europe,  a  consor t ium that  covers  
the whole va lue chain  of  po lyeste r- re la ted companies in  Europe,  to  so lve the p las t ic  waste  
issues in  the ocean.  
 

(2)  Mobi l i t y Solut ions 
Vision: One-of -a-kind company that  provides  solut ions for safe ,  secure and comfortable  
mobi l i t y spaces 
 
-  As for  the a i rbag fabr ics  bus iness,  because yarn product ion fac i l i t ies  were burnt  down in  a  

f i re  acc ident  in  2018,  the  bus iness has cont inued by p rocur ing yarns f rom externa l  suppl iers .  
In  order  to  make  i ts  way back as a g lobal  p layer  engaging in  in tegrated manufactur ing f rom 
yarns to  fabr ics ,  the Group wi l l  proceed  wi th  the reconstruct ion of  the yarn p lant .  

-  As for  engineer ing p las t i cs ,  the Group wi l l  seek to  expand sa les to  automobi le  
manufacturers  not  on ly in  Japan but  a lso overseas. 

-  For  the Mobi l i t y  bus iness in  the Group,  c ross-sect ional  market ing act i v i t i es  wi l l  be 
s t rengthened.  

 
(3)  Li festyle and Environmental  Solut ions 

Vision: Solut ion business enti ty that  contributes to the creat ion of  comfortable and 
healthy l iv ing environments  
 
-  In  the envi ronmenta l  so lu t ions bus iness,  the Group cont inues to  support  

envi ronment -respons ive so lu t ions to  chal lenges of  domest ic  and overseas customers 
through the o f fer ing o f  vo la t i le  organic  compound (VOC)  emiss ions t reatment  equipment  
and absorpt ion e lements .  In  the water  t reatment  membrane bus iness,  the  Group wi l l  
in t roduce new technolog ies such as forward osmosis  (FO)  membranes to  fur ther  he lp  to  
so lve g lobal  water  issues.  

-  In  the non-woven fabr ics  bus iness,  the Group wi l l  in tegrate i ts  technolog ies and bases for  
des ign of  va r ious non-woven fabr ics  and f i l te rs  and proceed wi th  expans ion in to  the 
automobi le ,  a i r  condi t ion ing,  and c iv i l  engineer ing/envi ronment  f ie lds  as a h igh-funct ion ing  
non-woven fabr ic  manufacturer .  

-  In  the funct ional  text i les  bus iness,  sa les  of  h igh-per formance f ibers  have  been expanding  
for  uses that  take advantage of  the i r  character is t i cs  such as h igh s t rength and l ight  weight ,  
inc lud ing uses in  b icyc le  t i res  and mar ine ropes.  As for  funct ional  cushion mater ia l  
“BREATHAIR,”  a  p lant  was reconstructed in  September 2019 af ter  the f i re  acc ident  in  2018 ,  
and manufacture and sa les of  the product  resumed. 

-   
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 (4)  Li fe  Science Solut ions 
Vision: Creat ion of  sys tems to real ize a healthy society and provide  a high level  of  
medical  care  
 
-  In  the b io-sc ience bus iness,  the Group has evolved yeast  cu l t iva t ion technolog ies,  for  which 

i t  launched the s tudy in  the 1940s,  and has been  focus ing on enzyme for  use in  b lood 
g lucose se l f -moni tor ing sensors ,  PCR enzyme and others .  For  COVID-19,  the Group 
developed tes t ing k i ts  ( reagents  for  research)  fo r  detect ing and measur ing COVID-19 in  a  
l i t t le  over  60 minutes a t  the ear l ies t  by shor ten ing the process for  ext ract ing genes wi th  
spec ia l ty enzyme,  e tc .  and a lso accelerat ing the ampl i f icat ion ra te .  The p roduct  became 
subject  to  the  coverage of  publ ic  medica l  insurance for  pharyngeal  swab tes t  in  May 2020,  
and for  sa l i va tes t  in  June 2020,  and has been  sh ipped to  test ing ins t i tu t ions.  

-  In  the medica l -use membranes bus iness,  the Group wi l l  respond to  an increase in  d ia lys is  
pat ients  in  Japan  and overseas and advance the development  and commerc ia l izat ion  of  new 
products .  

 
W ith  regard to  COVID-19,  the Company p rovides not  on ly  PCR test ing k i t s  but  a lso f i lms used  
in  medica l  face sh ie lds ,  a i rbag fabr ics  u t i l i zed in  protect i ve c lo th ing in  medica l  set t ings,  
mater ia ls  for  masks,  and  others .  
 
Going forward,  the Group wi l l  cont r ibute to  the achievement  o f  a  susta inab le soc ie ty by he lp ing  
to  so lve soc ia l  chal lenges wi th  the a im o f  rea l i z ing the corporate ph i losophy.  
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Risk Factors 
The Group is  exposed to  the fo l lowing r isks  that  may af fec t  i ts  operat ing resu l ts  and f inanc ia l  s ta tus.  
However,  r isks  descr ibed be low do no t  cover  a l l  the r isks  assoc ia ted the Group.  
The fu tu re mat ters  spec i f ied in  the fo l lowing are based on in format ion that  was avai lab le  as of  the  
end of  the f isca l  year  and cer ta in  assumpt ions that  serve  as the bas is  fo r  i ts  judgments .  
 
W ith  i ts  corporate ph i losophy “Jun-Ri -Soku-Yu (順理則裕 ) ” ,  which is  the s tar t ing po in t  for  i ts  CSR 
act iv i t ies ,  as  the foundat ion of  i ts  operat ions,  the  Group s t r i ves to  provide products  and services  
that  are bene f ic ia l  for  soc ie ty,  and  enhance both i ts  corporate and  soc ia l  va lue.  The Group has 
estab l ished the “CSR Commit tee”  chai red by the  Pres ident ,  as  the r isk  management  s t ruc ture,  
which manages the var ious types of  bus iness r isk  a t  the Group-wide leve l .  The “CSR Commit tee”  
changed i ts  name to  the “Susta inabi l i t y  Commit tee”  as  of  Apr i l  1 ,  2020 ,  and f igures out  and  
supervises in i t ia t i ves fo r  a l l  s takeholders ,  i nc lud ing those to  so lve g lobal  soc ia l  and envi ronmenta l  
issues,  in  a  centra l i zed manner.  
 
The Group formulated  the 2018 Medium-Term Management  Plan,  a iming to  ach ieve a medium- to  
long- term growth.  As descr ibed in  “1  Management  Pol icy ,  Bus iness Envi ronment ,  Issues to  Be 
Addressed,”  the 2018 Medium-Term Management  Plan of  which the f ina l  year  is  f isca l  2022 set  
targets  o f  management  ind icators  that  the  Group  p laces spec ia l  emphas is  on.  Al though these 
targets  were set  based on in format ion avai lab le  to  the Group at  the t ime of  the formulat ion,  par t  o f  
the bus iness envi ronment ,  inc lud ing  the  a i rbag  fabr ics  bus iness,  has  changed s ign i f icant l y due to  
the f i re  acc ident  occurred at  the Company’s  Tsuruga Research and Product ion Center  in  September  
2018.  Fur thermore,  in  the case where the externa l  envi ronment  changes,  inc lud ing the case where  
r isks  in  (1)  to  (15)  be low or  r isks  other  than those descr ibed be low become apparent  and the 
bus inesses are af fec ted d i rec t ly o r  ind i rec t l y,  the case where var ious measures are taken but  these 
measures do no t  work  e f fec t ive ly,  the case  where any unexpected s i tua t ion  ar ises,  and other  cases,  
targets  set  in  the 2018 Medium-Term Management  Plan might  no t  be achieved and  the Group’s  
operat ing resu l ts ,  f inanc ia l  s ta tus,  e tc .  could be  ser ious ly a f fec ted.  
 
 
1.  Incurred or h ighly probable r isks  
(1)  Occurrence of  disasters,  acc idents  and in fect ions  
The Group conducts  product ion act iv i t ies  and other  corporate  act i v i t ies  in  var ious locat ions in  
Japan and overseas,  and s t r ives to  prevent  an acc ident  as  much as poss ib le  by rep lac ing ag ing 
fac i l i t ies  and enhanc ing equipment  management  a t  each p lant  and each bus iness s i te ,  promot ing 
t ra in ing and educat ion for  operators  assuming acc idents ,  and other  means.  However ,  in  the case  
where a  natura l  d isaster  such as large ear thquake,  windsto rm and f lood,  and snow,  acc ident  such  
as f i re ,  or  in fec t ion of  COVID-19,  new type of  in f luenza,  e tc .  occurs ,  o r  the case where any s imi lar  
damage f rom a d isaster  occurs  in  a  bus iness par tner ,  th is  could ser ious ly  a f fec t  the Group’s  
bus inesses and others ,  through cons iderable  d i f f i cu l ty caused  in  i ts  product ion and other  ac t i v i t ies  
among others .  
 
Fo l lowing the f i re  a t  the  Tsuruga  Research and  Product ion Center  in  September 2018,  secur i t y and  
d isaster  prevent ion act i v i t ies  were reviewed,  and  the whole Group is  making concer ted ef fo r ts  to  
regain the t rus t  o f  soc ie ty.  The  Group overhauls  i ts  major  product ion s i tes  us ing the “Check ing 
Procedures fo r  F i re  Risks, ”  which was estab l ished based on advice of  a  th i rd-par ty exper t ,  and 
promotes improvement  in  funct ions of  f i re  ext inguish ing and protect ion equipment  a t  those s i tes  in  
a  p lanned manner.  In  addi t ion,  for  natu ra l  d isaste rs ,  d isaster  mi t igat ion measures are  implemented  
cont inuous ly th rough the  improvement  o f  in f ras t ructure at  bus iness s i tes  and p lants ,  inc lud ing 
aseismic  re in forcement  o f  bu i ld ings,  and emergency response exerc ises,  among others .  
 
S ince COVID-19 was repor ted in  W uhan Ci ty,  Hubei  province,  the People ’s  Republ ic  o f  China in  and  
af ter  December 2019,  the in fect ions have been spread throughout  the wor ld .  As such,  i t  is  expected  
that  the  g lobal  economy inc lud ing Japan wi l l  s ign i f icant ly  s tagnate due to  the spread o f  COVID-19,  
and i t  wi l l  take a cons iderable amount  o f  t ime for  economic act iv i t ies  to  normal ize.  Going forward ,  
there are concerns that  the Group’s  va r ious bus inesses wi l l  be af fec ted by a dec rease in  g lobal  
automobi le  product ion,  a  decrease in  demand fo r  e lec t ron ic  devices such as smartphones,  a  
decrease in  personal  consumpt ion and supply  chain d is rupt ions.  As for  the impact  on  bus inesses,  
par t icu lar l y a  decrease in  automobi le  product ion has cons iderable impact  on the engineer ing 
p las t ics  bus iness,  the a i rbag fabr ics  bus iness,  e tc .  and s tagnant  personal  consumpt ion has impact  
on the appare l  f ibers  bus iness,  e tc .  However,  because the t iming when the  spread of  COVID-19 is  
conta ined cannot  be pred ic ted,  i t  is  d i f f icu l t  to  de termine the impact  appropr ia te ly and reasonably.  
As fu ture countermeasures,  the Group wi l l  work  on f lexib le  inventory and  product ion ad justments  
and other  measures  in  a i rbag fabr ic  manufactu r ing fac i l i t ies  among others  to  min imize  the impact .  
W ith  regard to  procurement  o f  raw mater ia ls ,  a  s i tuat ion has not  a r isen where procurement  is  
d is rupted and  product ion  is  in ter rupted,  as  of  the  end of  the f isca l  year .  In  addi t ion,  wi th  the h ighest  
pr ior i t y on employees ’  heal th  and safety,  the head of f ice and branch  of f i ces carry out  te lework  
thoroughly,  and  p lants  operate fo l lowing the fo rmulated in fec t ion p reven t ion measures,  measures 
in  the case where a person gets  in fec ted,  and bus iness cont inu i ty p lan (BCP) response procedures.  
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On the f inanc ia l  s ide,  as  OC100 (Overcome Corona 100) act iv i t ies ,  the Group works to  review the 
t iming for  non-u rgent  cashing out  and lower inventor ies  and temporar i l y  reduce a ¥10 b i l l ion 
cash-out  to  prepare for  any cont ingency.  
 
(2)  Further Worsening of  Pol i t ical  & Economic Situat ions 
The Group produces and  se l ls  in  Japan and overseas a wide range  of  products  in  the f i lms and 
funct ional  po lymers,  industr ia l  mater ia ls ,  heal thcare and appare l  f ibers  f ie lds .  Pol i t ica l  turmoi l  or  
a  ser ious economic recess ion in  the countr ies  in  which our  product ion bases are located or  in  major  
markets  could reduce our  product ion and  sa les,  and i f  the impact  o f  these events  is  expected  to  
cont inue for  a  long  per iod,  the  Group’s  bus inesses could be  ser ious ly a f fec ted through  record ing of  
impai rment  losses on f i xed assets  and reversa l  o f  deferred  tax assets .  
In  the sa les,  the Group conducts  cred i t  t ransact ions.  Accord ing ly,  the Group assumes cred i t  r isks 
in  which a loss occurs  due to  customers ’  c red i t  deter iorat ion and bus iness fa i lure.  The Group has  
made provis ions for  bad debt  losses based on past  defau l t  ra t ios .  However,  in  the even t  o f  the  
bankruptcy of  major  customers due to  economic  recess ion or  o ther  reasons,  our  bus inesses could 
be ser ious ly a f fec ted by bad debt  loss that  substant ia l ly  exceeds the  amount o f  provis ions made.  
Therefore,  the Group s t r i ves to  min imize  i ts  c red i t  r isk  under  i ts  c red i t  management  regulat ions  by  
set t ing cred i t  l imi ts  fo r  each customer,  assess ing cred i t  s ta tus of  majo r  customers in  each f isca l  
per iod,  and other  means .  
Whi le  the U.S.- led  protect ion is t  po l icy has been spreading,  the Group  is  par t icu lar l y concerned 
about  the impact  o f  t rade f r ic t ion between the  U.S.  and China and s lowdown of  the  Chinese 
economy.  In  the Group,  expor ts  to  China and sa les in  China account  for  near ly 10% of  consol idated  
net  sa les .  Accord ing ly,  there are concerns about  impact  o f  worsening economic condi t ions and 
postponed capi ta l  investments  in  China on sa les in  the acryl ic  f i bers  bus iness and the engineer ing 
p las t ics  bus iness among others .  In  addi t ion,  impact  o f  cur ta i lment  o f  au tomobi le  product ion is  a lso  
a concern.  Because these impacts  might  be pro longed,  the Group wi l l  cons ider  measures inc lud ing  
review of  the supply cha in and d ive rs ion for  o ther  uses. 
 
2.  Medium- to long-term risk  
(3)  Purchase of  Raw Materia ls  
The Group purchases raw mater ia ls  f rom var ious  suppl iers  in  order  to  produce i ts  wide range of  
products  in  the f ie lds  of  f i lms and funct ional  po lymers,  industr ia l  mater ia l s ,  heal thcare,  appare l  
f ibers .  Major  raw mater ia ls  main ly inc lude po lyester ,  nylon and polyo le f in  res in ,  a l l  o f  which are  
petrochemica l  products .  Al though these mater ia ls  are p rovided by a number of  suppl iers  due  in  par t  
to  r isk  management  cons iderat ions,  there  remains a r isk  that  we may no t  be ab le to  purchase a 
suf f ic ient  vo lume of  raw mater ia ls  in  the case of  natura l  d isasters ,  p lague,  s t r ikes,  prob lems in  
t ransporta t ion,  suppl iers ’  fa i lure or  wi thdraw f rom the bus iness,  shr inkage,  acc idents ,  e tc .  In  
addi t ion,  i f  the  impact  o f  the spread of  COVID-19  is  pro longed,  tu rmoi l  o f  the supply chain  or  
d i f f icu l ty in  secur ing raw mater ia ls  could af fect  the Group’s  product ion and sa les.  Moreover ,  in  the  
event  o f  a  c i t y-wide lockdown or  res t r ic t ion on  out ings,  turmoi l  might  a lso be caused in  log is t ics  
networks,  leading to  d i f f i cu l ty wi th  procurement  o f  necessary raw mater ia l s .  Fur thermore ,  even i f  
raw mater ia ls  a re secured,  the  purchase  pr ices could soar  due la rge ly to  a  r ise in  crude  o i l  pr ice  and  
balance of  supply and demand of  the raw mater ia l s .  In  such cases,  contract ion of  product ion or  an  
increase in  costs  could occur  in  the Group.  
The Group has estab l ished an appropr ia te  t rad ing po l icy and conducts  procurement / log is t ics  
respons ib ly,  so as to  support  the development  o f  a  susta inable soc ie ty.  In  order  to  ach ieve  the 
SDGs wi th in  the supply chain,  inc lud ing legal  compl iance,  fa i r  t rad ing,  respect  for  human r igh ts ,  
and cons iderat ion  for  the  envi ronment ,  the  Group a ims to  rea l i ze  procurement  and  log is t ics  based  
on i ts  “CSR Procurement  Guide l ines. ”  
 
(4)  Product Defects  
To p revent  product  de fects ,  the Group  produces i ts  products  in  the f i lms and funct ional  po lymers,  
industr ia l  mater ia ls ,  hea l thcare and appare l  f ibers  in  accordance wi th  spec i f ic  qual i ty cont ro l  
s tandards under the cont ro l  o f  the Global  Envi ronment  and Safety Commit tee and Product  L iab i l i t y  
Prevent ion/Qual i t y Assurance Commit tee and  is  covered by p roduct  l iab i l i ty  insurance.  However,  
we cannot  guarantee tha t  a l l  o f  our  current  products  are f ree f rom a l l  defects  or  that  there wi l l  be  
no defect i ve p roducts  in  the fu ture.  Espec ia l l y,  i f  concerns ar ise abou t  safety  or  qual i ty  o f  products  
for  some reason in  assoc ia t ion wi th  p roducts  re la ted to  safety o f  automobi les ,  such as a i rbag 
fabr ics ,  and the cont ract  manufactur ing bus iness  of  pharmaceut ica ls  among others ,  i t  migh t  
threaten customers ’  l ives ,  and lead to  compensat ion to  customers and concerned par t ies  due par t l y  
to  reca l l  o f  the products .  Al though the Group is  covered by product  l iab i l i ty  insurance,  we cannot  
guarantee that  u l t imate  compensatory  payment  wi l l  be fu l l y  covered by insurance.  Therefore,  in  the  
occurrence of  mater ia l  p roduct  defects ,  our  group bus inesses,  e tc .  could be ser ious ly a f fec ted by 
large l iab i l i t y  payments  or  loss of  c red i t .  
The Group conducts  PL/QA assessments  to  ver i f y and improve  Product  Safety (PS) act i v i t ies  in  
each department  and g roup company.  Moreover ,  the Group estab l ishes c r i ter ia  fo r  assess ing PS 
and PL r isk ,  and  based on these cr i ter ia ,  i t  car r ies  out  inspect ions at  each s tage,  f rom product  
development  through to  sa le .  By address ing r isk  in  advance,  the Group works to  mi t igate r isks  
per ta in ing to  customers and others .  
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(5)  Securing of  human resources 
The Group cons iders  human resources to  be our  most  important  asset .  We support  the growth o f  
each and every one of  our  employees,  who have  a d ive rs i ty  o f  characte r i s t ics  and opin ions.  W e 
bel ieve that  the  cont inua t ion and development  o f  the Group as a whole can  be achieved  by bu i ld ing  
an envi ronment  in  which they can f lou r ish wi th in  the company and rea l i ze the i r  career  development .  
On the o ther  hand ,  i f  the  Group cannot  secure and develop personnel  who have a  h igh leve l  o f  
exper t ise o r  who have a leadersh ip  qual i t y to  be a fu ture execut i ve due to  a  decrease in  the labor  
force resu l t ing f rom the fa l l ing b i r thra te and the  ag ing populat ion,  changes in  employment  
condi t ions,  and other  reasons,  the compet i t iveness of  the organiza t ion could dec l ine,  which might  
cause s tagnat ion in  bus iness act iv i t ies .  
The Group is  put t ing i ts  e f for t  in to  nur tur ing the next  generat ion of  managers ,  who wi l l  he lp  to  
rea l ize i ts  growth s t ra tegy.  At  the same t ime,  the Group  is  ac t ive ly engaged in  in i t ia t i ves to  t ra in  
mid-career  h i res  and p romote the par t ic ipat ion of  women in  the work force,  focused on encouraging  
d ivers i t y.  “Japan-based t ra in ing”  for  loca l  employees is  he ld  for  se lected personnel  f rom overseas  
bus iness s i tes ,  wi th  the a im of  improving the o rganizat ional  power  for  i ts  employees wi th  the i r  
d i f fer ing work  s ty les ,  careers ,  gender,  nat ional i ty ,  race and bel ie fs  to  mutual ly respect  each other  
and rea l i ze the crea t ion of  va lue .  
 
(6)  Cl imate Change 
The impact  o f  c l imate  change assoc ia ted g lobal  warming has become apparent  wi th  an  increase of  
natura l  d isasters  such as typhoons and  loca l ized  torrent ia l  ra in fa l l ,  as  we l l  as  changes in  the 
ecosystem due to  the “subtrop ica l iza t ion”  o f  the c l imate,  and is  a lso af fec t ing the soc ie ty profoundly .  
The Group recognizes the ser ious r isk  posed by c l imate change to  the cont inuat ion of  bus iness 
act iv i t ies ,  and  we a re cu t t ing greenhouse gases in  product ion and log is t ics .  
In  the f isca l  year  ended March 31 ,  2020,  the  Group formulated a long-term vis ion toward fu r ther  
reduct ion in  g reenhouse gas emiss ions.  In  th is  v is ion,  “80% reduct ion (compared wi th  f isca l  2014) ”  
in  emiss ions by f isca l  2051 has been set  as  a new target .  The Group has a lso expressed i ts  support  
for  recommendat ions  made by the  Task Force  on Cl imate-re la ted F inanc ia l  Disc losures (TCFD)  and  
jo ined the TCFD Consort ium in  January  2020.  Regard ing th is  express ion of  support  and 
par t ic ipat ion in  the consor t ium as an opportun i ty,  the Group  wi l l  proceed  wi th  scenar io  analys is  on 
c l imate change and develop a medium- to  long- term s t ra tegy af te r  c lar i f y ing r isks  and opportun i t ies  
for  bus inesses.  
 
(7)  Environmental  Burden 
In  recent  years ,  mar ine  po l lu t ion issues s temming  f rom p last ic  waste in  the  ocean have  been  g lobal  
common chal lenges.  The  Group,  which has been b roadly develop ing bus inesses wi th  po lymer as i ts  
core mater ia l ,  cons iders  that  the p las t ic  waste issues are key chal lenges.  In  the fu ture,  t ighter  
regulat ions on  was te p las t ics  a t  a  g lobal  leve l  could ser ious ly a f fec t  the Group’s  bus inesses,  e tc .  
through a dec l ine in  demand for  p las t ic  products  and a decrease in  i ts  sa les.  The  Group is  
advanc ing the development  o f  products  and technolog ies that  he lp  mi t iga te envi ronmenta l  impact  
and a lso work ing on the  e f fec t ive  use of  resources.  For  example,  the Group  is  engaged in  in i t ia t i ves  
such as mel t ing  down f i lm scrap at  the  s i te  o f  product ion for  re -use as  raw mater ia l  depending on  
the brand of  f i lm.  
In  addi t ion,  s ince i t  is  important  that  the ent i re  supply chain cons iders  p las t ic  waste issues,  the 
Group has par t ic ipated in  the Clean Ocean Mater ia l  A l l iance (CLOMA),  which a ims to  promote 
susta inable use o f  p las t i c  products  and development  and  in t roduct ion  of  a l ternat i ve mate r ia ls ,  the  
Ci rcu lar  Economy for  F lexib le  Packaging (CEFLEX),  a  consor t ium that  pursues the rea l i zat ion of  
c i rcu lar  economy in  the sof t  packaging industry in  Europe,  and Petcore Europe,  a  consor t ium that  
covers  the whole va lue chain of  po lyester- re la ted  companies in  Europe,  to  so lve the p las t ic  waste  
issues in  the ocean.  
 
(8)  Information Securi ty 
The Group manages a lo t  o f  important  in format ion such as customer in format ion and conf ident ia l  
in format ion re la ted to  the execut ion of  bus iness.  To handle th is  in format ion,  the Group has put  in  
p lace secur i ty measures .  However,  in  the event  o f  communicat ion fa i lure due to  natura l  d isasters  
and others ,  unauthor i zed  access to  systems,  and being targeted in  a  cyberat tack,  among others ,  the 
Group’s  bus inesses,  e tc .  could be ser ious ly a f fec ted through  suspens ion of  i ts  bus iness act i v i t ies  
resu l t ing f rom system fa i lure,  leak of  customer  in format ion and conf iden t ia l  in format ion,  damage 
f rom f raud,  e tc .  
The  Group  drew up  the  “ In format ion Secur i t y  Pol icy”  and s t r i ves to  appropr ia te ly  manage and  ut i l i ze  
a l l  in format ion assets .  In  addi t ion,  the Group se t  up the “Cyber Secur i t y Commit tee”  and is  
proceeding wi th  not  on ly  technica l  and expert  measures but  a lso the improvement  o f  employees ’  
leve l  o f  awareness and the development  o f  in-house exper ts ,  among others .  Going forward,  the 
Group wi l l  promote  s t rengthening of  the ab i l i t y  to  respond to  inc idents .  
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(9)  Laws,  Regulat ions and Compliance 
The Group is  subject  to  var ious s ta tutory regulat ions on product  manufac tur ing,  qual i t y,  sa fety,  
envi ronment ,  compet i t i veness,  import /expor t ,  in format ion,  labor ,  account ing,  and others  in  each 
country in  which i t  opera tes.  I f  wa ter  res t r ic t ions or  o ther  regulat ions re la ted to  the envi ronment  
become t ighter  in  a reas where our  major  bus iness s i tes  are located,  subs tances current l y be ing 
used become prohib i ted or  regulat ions regard ing usage leve ls  a re implemented,  substant ia l  
res t r ic t ions could be imposed on our  product ion act iv i t ies  or  o ther  corporate act iv i t ies ,  or  the Group  
could be forced to  make  large capi ta l  investments ,  tax payments  or  o ther  expendi tu res in  order  to  
comply wi th  the regulat ions.  Tar i f f  h ikes o r  import  regulat ions on  quant i t y l imi ts  might  be imposed 
under ant idumping laws in  major  overseas marke ts  and could ser ious ly a f fec t  the Group’s  
bus inesses,  e tc .  
Fur thermore,  i f  any non-compl iance or  i l lega l  ac t  occurs  at  the Group o r  bus iness par tners  in  
assoc ia t ion wi th  these regulat ions,  a  cons iderab le amount  o f  damages could be caused inc lud ing  
loss of  c red i t  o f  the Group and admin is t ra t i ve penal ty.  
Under the  Group’s corporate ph i losophy “Jun-Ri -Soku-Yu (順理則裕 ) ” ,  the Company is  advanc ing  
i ts  e f for ts ,  regard ing  the idea of  “Th ink ing  ra t ional ly and log ica l l y,  as  wel l  as  respect ing e th ics  and  
mora ls ,  the fundamenta l  nature of  be ing human” as the bas is  o f  compl iance.  The  Group has 
d is t r ibuted the “TOYOBO Group Compl iance Manual ”  to  Group employees and had s ta f f  read 
through the texts  together  to  ensure thorough fami l iar izat ion wi th  the ru les  and enhance awareness 
of  compl iance.  In  the f isca l  year  ended March 31 ,  2020,  the Group  put  in  p lace regulat ions on 
br ibery/g i f ts /hospi ta l i ty  and worked on  fami l iar i zat ion and educat ion o f  them to s t rengthen 
in i t ia t ives for  cor rupt ion preven t ion.  As the s t ruc ture to  promote  compl iance,  a  Compl iance 
Commit tee has been estab l ished,  compr is ing members of  the Board of  Corporate Execut i ve Of f icers  
and Contro l l ing Supervisors ,  to  promote Group-wide compl iance f rom a management  perspect i ve,  
and a Compl iance Promot ion Commit tee has been estab l ished as a sub-body to  th is  commit tee,  
which cons iders  and promotes spec i f ic  in i t ia t ives ,  in  order  to  work  to  c lar i fy po l icy and s tandards ,  
and enhance the ef fec t iveness of  educat ion,  t ra in ing and prevent i ve measures. 
 
(10)  Overseas Business Activi t ies  
The Group is  expanding  i ts  bus iness act i v i t ies  g lobal ly to  the U.S. ,  Europe ,  China ,  Southeast  As ia ,  
Lat in  Amer ica and  other  reg ions.  Accord ing ly,  in  addi t ion to  t rends in  the  whole g lobal  economy,  i f  
any coun try in  which  we operate exper iences unforeseen events ,  inc lud ing unexpected changes  in  
laws,  regulat ions  or  po l ic ies  or  soc ia l  unrest  as  a resu l t  o f  te r ror ism,  war,  po l i t ica l  upheaval  or  any  
other  cause,  th is  could have a mate r ia l  e f fec t  on the Group’s  bus inesses,  e tc .  
In  response to  these  r isks ,  the Group  has developed a “Risk  Management  Manual ”  for  each count ry  
and s t r ives to  improve the overseas r isk  management  s t ruc ture to  ident i fy the  r isks  through each  
Group  company’s  in format ion co l lec t ion,  in format ion f rom externa l  consul tants  and o thers  and  deal  
wi th  them spec i f ica l l y and appropr ia te ly be fore they become apparent .  
In  addi t ion,  the Group has pa id taxes appropr ia te ly in  compl iance wi th  each country ’s  tax law and 
a lso g ives c lose at ten t ion to  in ternat ional  tax r isks  such as appl icab le t ransfer  pr ice taxat ion  of  
each country.  However,  d i f ference of  v iews wi th  tax au thor i t ies  could  resu l t  in  addi t ional  tax levies .  
 
(11)  Li t igat ion 
No major  lawsui t  that  could have a  mater ia l  e f fec t  was f i led against  the Group in  the f isca l  year  
ended March 31,  2020.  The Group conducts  product ion and other  co rporate act iv i t ies  in  var ious 
domest ic  and overseas locat ions.  In  th is  p rocess,  there is  a  poss ib i l i ty  that  lawsui ts  may be b rought  
against  us  in  connect ion  wi th  product  l iab i l i t y ,  the envi ronment ,  labor ,  in te l lec tua l  proper ty  or  o ther  
areas.  I f  a  major  lawsui t  is  f i led against  the Group,  our  opera t ing resu l ts  and f inanc ia l  s ta tus could  
be ser ious ly a f fec ted.   
 
3.  Financia l  Risk  
(12)  Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuat ion 
The Company imports  ce r ta in  raw mater ia ls  f rom overseas and  exports  ce r ta in  products  
manufactured in  Japan to  overseas.  Because  d i f fe rence between the  expor t  vo lume of  p roducts  and  
the import  vo lume of  raw mater ia ls  is  not  large,  the ef fec t  o f  exchange f luc tuat ions on operat ing  
resu l ts  is  not  s ign i f icant  in  the medium term. In  the shor t  term,  however,  i f  the apprec ia t ion of  the  
Japanese yen against  fore ign currenc ies develops ,  products  for  which the  manufactur ing lead t ime 
is  re la t ive ly long wi l l  negat ive ly a f fec t  operat ing resu l ts .  W hi le  the Group s t r ives to  min imize such  
r isks  us ing forward fore ign exchange con tracts ,  e tc . ,  the r isks  cannot  be  complete ly avo ided.  
Fur thermore,  s ince operat ing resu l ts  o f  overseas consol idated subs id iar ies  and assoc ia tes 
accounted for  us ing the equi ty method a re conver ted in to  the yen in  the preparat ion of  consol idated  
f inanc ia l  s ta tements ,  exchange rates at  the t ime of  convers ion af fec t  the  consol idated f inanc ia l  
s ta tements .  In  addi t ion ,  i f  the apprec ia t ion  of  the  yen develops,  th is  could ser ious ly a f fec t  the 
Group’s  operat ing resu l ts ,  e tc . ,  inc lud ing a decrease in  own capi ta l  through currency t rans la t ion  
d i f ferences of  fo re ign subs id iar ies  and others .  
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(13)  Major Interest  Rate Rise  
The Group ra ises funds by bor rowing  f rom f inanc ia l  ins t i tu t ions and issu ing bonds,  among other  
means.  Of  these in terest  bear ing debts ,  for  loans  payable exposed  to  the r isk  o f  in terest  ra te  
f luc tuat ion,  der i vat i ves (main ly in terest  ra te  swaps)  are  used as  hedging ins t ruments  to  avo id the  
r isk  o f  changes  in  in te rest  payments .  In  addi t ion,  the Group  focuses on  a “ ra t io  o f  in te rest  bear ing  
debt  and  net  assets  (exc lud ing non-cont ro l l ing in terests)  (D/E Rat io) ”  and  has accord ing ly  set  the  
ob ject ive of  i ts  D/E rat io  o f  less than 1.0.  The Group achieved a  D/E rat io  o f  0 .98 as of  the end o f  
the f isca l  year  (March 31,  2020) and held the ra t io  to  less than 1.0 .  
 
(14)  Substant ia l  Decl ine in Stock Prices  
The Group  holds a  s ign i f i cant  vo lume of  s tocks that  are  t raded on  exchange markets  and bears  the  
r isk  o f  f luc tuat ions in  s tock pr ices.  I f  the p r ices of  these s tocks dec l ine by a la rge marg in ,  net  
unreal ized  ho ld ing ga ins  on secur i t ies  may decrease and losses may be recorded when these 
s tocks are so ld .  For  the  Company’s  corpora te pens ion,  s ince cer ta in  pens ion assets  are  managed 
wi th  s tocks that  are  t raded on exchange markets ,  there is  a  r isk  o f  a  decrease in  pens ion assets  due  
to  a  dec l ine in  s tock pr ices.  W i th  respect  to  investment  s tocks he ld  for  purposes other  than  net  
investment  purposes,  the Company ind iv idual l y ver i f ies  whether  the s tock contr ibutes to  i ts  
susta ined growth and medium- to  long-term improvement  in  the corpora te va lue,  in  l ight  o f  fu tu re 
bus iness s t ra tegy,  bus iness re la t ions,  and other  fac tors  a t  the Board of  Di rec tors  each year  to  judge  
whether  o r  not  to  cont inue to  ho ld  the s tock.  
 
(15)  Impairment Loss of  Fixed Assets  
The Group holds f i xed  assets  for  bus iness use such as land fo r  p lants ,  bu i ld ings and manufactur ing  
fac i l i t ies  and conducts  p roduct ion and sa les act i v i t ies .  As products  manufactured wi th  these 
manufactur ing fac i l i t ies  are affec ted by changes in  the re levant operat ing  envi ronment  inc lud ing 
markets  and technolog ica l  development ,  earn ings  could decrease s ign i f icant ly.  In  addi t ion,  the re is  
a lso the r isk  o f  a  s ign i f icant  decrease in  appra isa l  va lue of  he ld  assets  due to  a  drop in  market  va lue 
of  land,  among others .  A dec l ine in  prof i tab i l i ty  o r  a  s ign i f icant  decrease in  va lue o f  he ld  assets  
could ser ious ly a ffec t  the Group’s  operat ing resu l ts ,  e tc . ,  inc lud ing the  requi red record ing  of  
impai rment  losses on the asset .  
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Consolidated Financial  Highlights  
TOYOBO CO. ,  LTD.  AND CONSOLI DATED S UBSI DIARIES  
Ye ars ended March 31,  2020  a nd 2 019  
 

 
See acc ompany ing Not es  t o Cons ol id a t ed F inanc ia l S t at ements .  
 
  

2020 2019 2020
Net sales ¥339,607 ¥336,698 $3,120,527
Cost of sales 255,140 255,634 2,344,390
Profit before income taxes and non-controlling
interests
Profit attributable to owners of parent 13,774 (603) 126,564
Total assets 488,874 461,047 4,492,089
Total net assets ¥182,636 ¥181,226 $1,678,177

Net profit per share ¥155.12 (¥6.80) $1.425

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S.
dollars (Note 1)

Yen  U.S. dollars
(Note 1)

181,16310219,716
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Financial  Sect ion 
CONSOLIDATED FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY 
TOYOBO CO. ,  LTD.   AND CONSOLI DATED S UB SI DI ARIES  
Ye ars ended March 31,  2020 ,  2019,  2 018,  2017 and 2016  

  
*1  The Company c onso l idat ed s har es  on  the bas is  of  one new c ommon s hare f or  ev e ry  10  co mmon sha res w it h 
an ef f ec t ive  d at e o f  Oc t obe r 1,  2017.  As  a res u l t ,  net  pro f i t  pe r  s hare ( yen ) i s  ca lc ulat ed ass um ing t he  
conso l idat ion  t ook p lace  Apr i l  1 ,  2017 .  
*2  The Group has  appl ied t he “Par t ia l  Amendments  to Acc ount ing S t andard f o r Tax E f f ec t  Acc ount ing”  (ASBJ  
S tat ement  No.  28,  February 16 ,  201 8)  e ffec t iv e f ro m the beg inn ing of  t he f isca l  yea r ended March  31,  2019.  
Accord ing ly,  ma jo r  ma nag er i a l  ind ic a t ors ,  etc ,  f or  the f isc al  ye ar  e nde d Marc h 31,  2018  a re  th os e a f t e r 
ret ros pec t iv e a pp l ica t i on  o f  t h is  acc ount ing s t andard and t he  re lev an t gu idance .  

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

 For the year:

 Net sales ¥339,607  ¥336,698  ¥331,148  ¥329,487  ¥347,763  

 Cost of sales 255,140  255,634  250,042  249,940  268,069  

 Selling, general and administrative expenses 61,673  59,337  57,183  56,215  56,571  

 Operating profit 22,794  21,727  23,923  23,332  23,123  

 Other expenses 3,078  21,625  5,698  9,392  6,898  
 Profit before income taxes and non-controlling
 interests

19,716  102  18,225  13,940  16,225  

 Provision for income taxes 6,406  913  5,243  4,913  5,959  

 Profit attributable to owners of parent 13,774  (603) 13,044  9,444  10,150  

 Comprehensive income ¥4,437  (¥467) ¥15,611  ¥13,519  ¥2,147  

 Net profit per share (yen)  *1 ¥155.12  (¥6.80) ¥146.93  ¥106.38  ¥11.43  

 At the end of the year:

 Total current assets  *2 ¥206,416  ¥193,125  ¥186,571  ¥196,292  ¥186,633  

 Property, plant and equipment 231,478  208,476  203,451  207,906  208,937  

 Total assets  *2 488,874  461,047  445,495  450,790  444,587  

 Total long-term liabilities 183,916  148,053  135,870  143,015  153,796  

 Total net assets ¥182,636  ¥181,226  ¥184,515  ¥170,910  ¥160,101  

Millions of yen, except per share information
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 
TOYOBO CO. ,  LTD.   AND CONSOLI DATED SUB SI DI ARIES  
Marc h 31,  2020 and  2019  

 
See acc ompany ing Not es  t o Cons ol id a t ed F inanc ia l S t at ements .  
  

ASSETS 2020 2019 2020

Current  assets :
  Cash and time deposits (Note 3, 11 and 18) ¥25,247 ¥22,318 $231,986
  Notes and accounts receivable:
    Trade (Note 3) 93,553 85,790 859,625 
    Other 2,904 3,405 26,684 
    Allowance for doubtful receivables (154) (199) (1,415)

96,303 88,996 884,894 
  Inventories (Note 6) 80,629 76,799 740,871 
  Other current assets 4,237 5,012 38,932 
  Total current assets 206,416 193,125 1,896,683 

Investments  and other assets :
  Investment securities (Note 3 and 4)
    Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 8,433 9,110 77,488 
    Other 15,071 23,839 138,482 
  Deferred income tax assets (Note 8) 17,977 17,276 165,184 
  Other 5,615 6,258 51,594 
  Allowance for doubtful accounts (757) (691) (6,956)

46,339 55,792 425,793 

 Property ,  plant  and equipment  (Note 11):   
  Land (Note 16) 97,055 98,199 891,804 
  Buildings and structures 143,221 140,973 1,316,007 
  Machinery and equipment 330,131 331,290 3,033,456 
  Tools, furniture and fixtures 21,575 21,363 198,245 
  Lease assets 5,762 3,503 52,945 
  Construction in progress 29,876 11,335 274,520 

627,620 606,663 5,766,976 
  Less accumulated depreciation 396,142 398,187 3,640,007 

231,478 208,476 2,126,969 

Intangible assets :
  Other 4,641 3,654 42,644 

4,641 3,654 42,644 
      Total assets  (Note 15) ¥488,874 ¥461,047 $4,492,089

Thousands of U.S.
dollars (Note 1)

Millions of yen
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See acc ompany ing Not es  t o Cons ol id a t ed F inanc ia l S t at ements .  
*1  Commo n s t oc k：  Aut ho r ized 200, 000 thous and s ha res in 2020 and 2 019 .  I ssued 89,048  t hous and s ha res  in  
2020 and 2019 .  
  

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2020 2019 2020

Current  l iabil i t ies :
  Short-term borrowing (Note 3 and 9) ¥32,027 ¥41,882 $294,285
  Long-term debt due within one year (Note 3, 9 and 11) 8,510 22,433 78,195 
  Notes and accounts payable:
    Trade (Note 3 and 11) 50,016 44,772 459,579 
    Other (Note 9) 18,367 13,418 168,768 

68,383 58,190 628,347 
  Accrued employees' bonuses 4,366 4,128 40,118 
  Other current liabilities (Note 11) 9,036 5,135 83,029 
      Total current liabilities 122,322 131,768 1,123,973 

Long-term l iabil i t ies :
  Long-term debt due after one year (Note 3, 9 and 11) 130,851 99,009 1,202,343 
  Deferred income tax liabilities on land revaluation (Note 8 and 16) 21,277 21,277 195,507 
  Defined benefit liability (Note 10) 21,613 18,236 198,594 
  Directors' and statutory auditors' retirement benefits 247 233 2,270 
  Provision for environmental measures 331 419 3,041 
  Other long-term liabilities  (Note 8 and 9) 9,597 8,879 88,183 
      Total long-term liabilities 183,916 148,053 1,689,938 
      Total l iabi l i t ies 306,238 279,821 2,813,912 

Cont ingent  l iabil i t ies  (Note 13)

Net  assets  (Note 12):
  Capital stock  *1 51,730 51,730 475,328 
  Capital surplus 32,200 32,206 295,874 
  Retained earnings 61,929 51,858 569,043 

  Less treasury stock, at cost
  (238 thousand shares in 2020 and 281 thousand shares in 2019)

(350) (416) (3,216)

      Total shareholders' equity 145,509 135,378 1,337,030 
  Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 4,013 9,071 36,874 
  Deffered gains and losses on hedges (8) (33) (74)
  Land revaluation (Note 16) 44,457 44,483 408,499 
  Foreign currency translation adjustments (11,953) (10,277) (109,832)
  Accumulated remeasurements of defined benefit plans (4,128) (2,038) (37,931)
      Total accumulated other comprehensive income 32,381 41,206 297,537 

  Non-controlling interests 4,746 4,642 43,609 
      Total net  assets 182,636 181,226 1,678,177 

             Total l iabil i t ies  and net  assets ¥488,874 ¥461,047 $4,492,089

  Net  assets  per share ¥2,003.01 ¥1,989.29 $18.405

Thousands of U.S.
dollars (Note 1)

 U.S. dollars
(Note 1)

Millions of yen

Yen
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Consolidated Statements of Operations 
TOYOBO CO. ,  LTD.   AND CONSOLI DATED SUB SI DI ARIES  
Ye ars ended March 31,  2020  a nd 2 019  

   
See acc ompany ing Not es  t o Cons ol id a t ed F inanc ia l S t at ements .  

2020 2019 2020

  Net  sales  (Note 15) ¥339,607 ¥336,698 $3,120,527
  Cost of sales 255,140 255,634 2,344,390 
    Gross profit 84,467 81,064 776,137 
  Sell ing,  general and adminis t rat ive expenses 61,673 59,337 566,691 
   Operating profit (Note 15) 22,794 21,727 209,446 

  Other income (expenses)
    Dividend income 650 742 5,973 
    Interest expense (1,369) (1,305) (12,579)
    Gain on sale of securities 448 198 4,117 
    Loss on sales of shares of subsidiaries and associates - (1,873) - 
    Foreign exchange gains (losses) (435) 114 (3,997)
    Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3,979) (1,905) (36,562)
　 Loss due to fire (Note 20) (3,112) (13,822) (28,595)
    Insurance income 10,647 306 97,831 
    Gain on bargain purchase (Note 15) 65 175 597 
    State subsidy - 607 - 
    Impairment loss (Note 7 and 15) (2,397) (32) (22,025)
    Equity in income of unconsolidated  subsidiaries and affiliates 469 471 4,309 
    Loss on reduction of non-current assets - (607) - 
　 Loss on suspension of production (947) (1,079) (8,702)
    Salaries paid to dispatched employees (859) (1,014) (7,893)
    Other, net (2,259) (2,601) (20,757)

(3,078) (21,625) (28,283)
  Prof it  before income taxes and non-control l ing interes ts 19,716 102 181,163 
  Prov is ion for income taxes (Note 8)
    Current 5,587 2,907 51,337 
    Deferred 819 (1,995) 7,525 

6,406 912 58,862 
  Prof it  (loss) 13,310 (810) 122,301 
  Prof it  (loss) at t ributable to non-control l ing interes ts (464) (207) (4,264)
  Prof it  (loss) at t ributable to owners  of  parent ¥13,774 (¥603) $126,564

  Net  prof it  (loss) per share
    Basic (Note 2) ¥155.12 (¥6.80) $1.425
  Cash div idends applicable to the year ¥40.00 ¥40.00 $0.368

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S.
dollars (Note 1)

Yen
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
TOYOBO CO. ,  LTD.   AND CONSOLI DATED SUB SI DI ARIES  
Ye ars ended March 31,  2020  a nd 2 019  

  
  

2020 2019 2020

Net profit (loss) ¥13,310 (¥810) $122,301

Other comprehensive income (Note 19)

    Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (5,052) 1,035 (46,421)

    Deferred gains and losses on hedges 25 16 230 

    Foreign currency translation adjustments (1,705) (123) (15,667)

    Accumulated remeasurements of defined benefit plans (2,089) (413) (19,195)

    accounted for using equity method

    Total other comprehensive income (8,873) 343 (81,531)

Comprehensive income 4,437 (467) 40,770 

   Comprehensive income attributable to 

     Owners of the parent　 4,974 (298) 45,704 

     Non-controlling interests (¥538) (¥169) ($4,943)

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S.
dollars (Note 1)

    Share of other comprehensive income of associates (478)(172)(52)
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets 
TOYOBO CO. ,  LTD.   AND CONSOLI DATED SUB SI DI ARIES  
Ye ars ended March 31,  2020  a nd 2 019  

  
See acc ompany ing Not es  t o Cons ol id a t ed F inanc ia l S t at ements .  
  

2020 2019 2020

Shareholders' equity
    Capital stock
        Balance at the beginning of current period ¥51,730 ¥51,730 $475,328 
        Changes in items during the period
            Total changes in items during the period - - - 
        Balance at the end of current period 51,730 51,730 475,328 
    Capital surplus
        Balance at the beginning of current period 32,206 32,240 295,929 
        Changes in items during the period
            Capital increase of consolidated subsidiaries - (34) - 
            Disposal of treasury stock (6) - (55)
            Total changes in items during the period (6) (34) (55)
        Balance at the end of current period 32,200 32,206 295,874 
    Retained earnings
        Balance at the beginning of current period 51,858 56,117 476,505 
        Changes in items during the period
            Dividends from surplus (3,551) (3,551) (32,629)
            Profit (loss) attributable to owners of parent 13,774 (603) 126,564 
            Reversal of land revaluation 26 (16) 239 
            Change in scope of consolidation (169) (89) (1,553)
            Change in scope of equity method (9) - (83)
            Total changes in items during the period 10,071 (4,259) 92,539 
        Balance at the end of current period 61,929 51,858 569,043 
    Treasury stock
        Balance at the beginning of current period (416) (411) (3,822)
        Changes in items during the period
            Purchase of treasury stock (3) (5) (28)
            Disposal of treasury stock 69 0 634 
            Total changes in items during the period 66 (5) 606 
        Balance at the end of current period (350) (416) (3,216)
    Total shareholders' equity
        Balance at the beginning of current period 135,378 139,676 1,243,940 
        Changes in items during the period
            Dividends from surplus (3,551) (3,551) (32,629)
            Profit (loss)  attributable to owners of parent 13,774 (603) 126,564 
            Reversal of land revaluation 26 (16) 239 
            Change in scope of consolidation (169) (89) (1,553)
            Change in scope of equity method (9) - (83)
            Capital increase of consolidated subsidiaries - (34) - 
            Purchase of treasury stock (3) (5) (28)
            Disposal of treasury stock 63 0 579 
            Total changes in items during the period 10,131 (4,298) 93,090 
        Balance at the end of current period ¥145,509 ¥135,378 $1,337,030

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S.
dollars (Note 1)
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See acc ompany ing Not es  t o Cons ol id a t ed F inanc ia l S t at ements .  
 
 
 
  

2020 2019 2020
Accumulated other comprehensive income
    Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities
        Balance at the beginning of current period ¥9,071 ¥8,040 $83,350 
        Changes in items during the period
            Net changes in items other than shareholders' equity (5,058) 1,031 (46,476)
            Total changes in items during the period (5,058) 1,031 (46,476)
        Balance at the end of current period 4,013 9,071 36,874 
    Deferred gains and losses on hedges
        Balance at the beginning of current period (33) (49) (303)
        Changes in items during the period
            Net changes in items other than shareholders' equity 25 16 230 
            Total changes in items during the period 25 16 230 
        Balance at the end of current period (8) (33) (74)
    Land revaluation
        Balance at the beginning of current period 44,483 44,467 408,738 
        Changes in items during the period
            Net changes in items other than shareholders' equity (26) 16 (239)
            Total changes in items during the period (26) 16 (239)
        Balance at the end of current period 44,457 44,483 408,499 
    Foreign currency translation adjustments
        Balance at the beginning of current period (10,277) (9,948) (94,432)
        Changes in items during the period
            Net changes in items other than shareholders' equity (1,676) (329) (15,400)
            Total changes in items during the period (1,676) (329) (15,400)
        Balance at the end of current period (11,953) (10,277) (109,832)
    Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
        Balance at the beginning of current period (2,038) (1,625) (18,726)
        Changes in items during the period
            Net changes in items other than shareholders' equity (2,090) (413) (19,204)
            Total changes in items during the period (2,090) (413) (19,204)
        Balance at the end of current period (4,128) (2,038) (37,931)
    Total accumulated other comprehensive income
        Balance at the beginning of current period 41,206 40,885 378,627 
        Changes in items during the period
            Net changes in items other than shareholders' equity (8,825) 321 (81,090)
            Total changes in items during the period (8,825) 321 (81,090)
        Balance at the end of current period 32,381 41,206 297,537 
Non-controlling interests
    Balance at the beginning of current period 4,642 3,954 42,654 
    Changes in items during the period
        Net changes in items other than shareholders' equity 104 688 956 
        Total changes in items during the period 104 688 956 
    Balance at the end of current period 4,746 4,642 43,609 
Total net assets
    Balance at the beginning of current period 181,226 184,515 1,665,221 
    Changes in items during the period
        Dividends from surplus (3,551) (3,551) (32,629)
        Profit (loss)  attributable to owners of parent 13,774 (603) 126,564 
        Reversal of land revaluation 26 (16) 239 
        Change in scope of consolidation (169) (89) (1,553)
        Change in scope of equity method (9) - (83)
        Capital increase of consolidated subsidiaries - (34) - 
        Purchase of treasury stock (3) (5) (28)
        Disposal of treasury stock 63 0 579 
        Net changes in items other than shareholders' equity (8,721) 1,009 (80,134)
        Total changes in items during the period 1,410 (3,289) 12,956 
    Balance at the end of current period ¥182,636 ¥181,226 $1,678,177

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S.
dollars (Note 1)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
TOYOBO CO. ,  LTD.   AND CONSOLI DATED SUB SI DI ARIES  
Ye ars ended March 31,  2020  a nd 2 019  

 
See acc ompany ing Not es  t o Cons ol id a t ed F inanc ia l S t at ements .   

2020 2019 2020
Cash f lows prov ided by  operat ing ac t iv it ies :
  Profit before income taxes and non-controlling interests ¥19,716 ¥102 $181,163 
  Depreciation and amortization 17,005 15,823 156,253 
  Allowance for doubtful receivables, net 48 101 441 
  Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit liability 230 (671) 2,113 
  Interest and dividend income (791) (863) (7,268)
  Interest expense 1,369 1,305 12,579 
  Equity in gains of unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates (469) (471) (4,309)
  Impairment loss 2,397 32 22,025 
  Loss on sale and disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 3,963 1,902 36,415 
  Gain on sales and valuation of investment securities (448) (87) (4,117)
  Loss on sales of shares of subsidiaries and associates - 1,873 - 
  Loss due to fire 3,112 13,822 28,595 
  Insurance income (10,647) (306) (97,831)
  Increase in trade notes and accounts receivable (2,005) (4,562) (18,423)
  Decrease (increase) in inventories 1,678 (7,098) 15,419 
  Increase in trade notes and accounts payable 3,367 603 30,938 
  Decrease in net defined benefit asset 142 1,452 1,305 
  Other, net 552 (1,114) 5,072 
      Total 39,219 21,843 360,369 
  Payments for loss due to fire (4,147) (8,029) (38,105)
  Payments related to lawsuits - (255) - 
  Income taxes paid (1,464) (6,027) (13,452)
  Insurance income received 10,647 306 97,831 
    Net cash flows provided by operating activities 44,255 7,838 406,643 
Cash f lows used in invest ing ac t iv it ies :
  Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (30,858) (24,235) (283,543)
  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangibles 1,344 529 12,350 
  Purchase of shares of subsidiaries resulting in change in scope of
  consolidation (Note 18)

(8,797) - (80,832)

  Proceeds from sale of shares of subsidiaries resulting in change in
  scope of consolidation

- 425 - 

  Proceeds from sales of shares of subsidiaries and associates - 475 - 
  Collections of long-term loans receivable 903 33 8,297 
  Payments of long-term loans receivable (117) (1,940) (1,075)
  Interest and dividends received 810 944 7,443 
  Other, net (2,501) (517) (22,981)
    Net cash flows used in investing activities (39,216) (24,286) (360,342)
Cash f lows prov ided by  (used in) f inanc ing ac t iv it ies :
  Cash dividends (3,551) (3,550) (32,629)
  Cash dividends to non-controlling interests (25) (7) (230)
  Increase (decrease) in short-term bank loans (13,498) 8,719 (124,028)
  Proceeds from long-term loans payable 14,595 23,316 134,108 
  Repayments of long-term loans payable (12,460) (24,105) (114,490)
  Proceeds from issuance of bonds 25,000 10,000 229,716 
  Payments of bonds (10,000) - (91,886)
  Payments of interest (1,376) (1,307) (12,644)
  Payments for purchase of treasury stock (3) (5) (28)
  Other, net (487) (453) (4,475)
    Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities (1,805) 12,608 (16,586)
Adjustments for foreign currency translation (621) (106) (5,706)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,613 (3,946) 24,010 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 22,167 25,857 203,685 
Increase resulting from changes in consolidated subsidiaries 304 256 2,793 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 18) ¥25,084 ¥22,167 $230,488

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S.
dollars (Note 1)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
TOYOBO CO. ,  LTD.   AND CONSOLI DATED SUB SI DI ARIES  
 

 
1.   BASIS OF PRESENTING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The acc ompan ying cons o l ida t ed f inanc ia l  s t at ement s  of  To yo bo  Co. ,  Lt d .  (t he  "Compan y")  and i t s  
conso l idat ed s ubs id ia r i es  hav e been prepare d in acc o rdanc e wit h the prov is ions se t fo r t h i n t he Ja pan es e 
F inanc ia l  I ns t rumen ts  and Exchange Law and it s  re lat ed ac count ing regu lat ions and in  c on fo rmi t y wi th  
acc ount ing pr inc ip l es  gener a l ly acc epted in  J apa n ( “J apanese GAAP”),  wh ic h are d if f erent  in  c er t a in  r es pec ts  
as  t o a pp l ic a t ion  and  d isc los u re  requ i remen ts  f rom I n t ernat iona l F inanc ia l  Repor t ing  S t an dar ds .   
 
The acc ount s o f  major  c ons o l id at ed  f oreign  s ubs id ia r ie s  for  t he  ye ars  ended Marc h 31,  2020 and 2 019  wer e 
prepa red  in  acc ord anc e w i t h  e i t he r  I nt e rnat iona l  F inanc ia l  R epo rt ing  S t andards  or  U .S .  gene ra l l y acc ept ed 
acc ount ing pr inc ip les  f or  cons o l ida t ion  purpos es ,  wi th  ad jus t ments  f o r the s pec i f ied f iv e i t ems as  app l i cab l e  
i n c omp l ian ce wi th  ASBJ  (Acc ount ing S t andards  Board o f J apan ) P rac t ic a l So lut ion  No.  18,  “Tent at ive  
Treat me nt  of  Acc ount ing f or  Fo re ign  Subs id ia r ies  in  P repa r i ng Cons o l ida t ed F inanc ia l  S t ate me nts . ”  I f  o t he r  
GAAP are us ed in  p repar ing ot he r  f o re ign s ubs idia r i es  f inanc ial  s ta t eme nt s  f o r  c ons ol ida t ion  purposes ,  
app ro p r i a te  mod if i ca t io ns  in c ompl ia nc e wi t h ASBJ  Prac t ic a l  So lu t ion No.  18 a re  a ls o  made.  
 
The acc ompan ying cons o l ida t ed f inanc ia l  s t at ement s  hav e been res t ruc t ured and t rans la t ed  i n to  Eng l is h ,  
w i t h  s ome expan ded des c r ipt ions ,  f rom t he c ons ol ida t ed f inanc ia l  s t ate ment s o f  the  Comp any prepa red in 
acc ordanc e w it h  J ap anese GAAP and f i led wi t h t he app rop r ia t e Loc a l F i nanc e B ureau  of  t he M in is t r y o f  
F i nance as  requ i red by the  F inanc ia l  I ns t rument s and  Exchange Law.  Some s upp leme nt ary  i nf o rmat ion 
i nc lu ded in  t he c orpo rat e J apanes e langua ge cons o l ida t ed f inanc ia l  s t at ement s ,  but  not  requ i red f o r fa i r  
p res ent at io n,  is  not  presen ted in th e acc ompan ying cons o l ida t ed f ina nc ia l  s t at ement s.  Cer t a in 
rec las s if ic a t ions  hav e been  made in  t he prev ious  cons o l i dat ed f inanc ia l s t at eme nts  to  c onfo rm to  t he c ur ren t  
pres ent at io n.  
 
Trans la t io ns  of  the J apan es e yen amou nts  in t o U.S .  do l la r  amou nts  were inc lu ded  so le ly  f o r  t he  c onv en ie nc e 
of  read ers  out s ide Japan ,  us ing t he p rev a i l in g exchange ra t e at  Marc h 31,  2020,  wh ic h was ¥108. 83 t o U. S . 
$1. 00.  Thes e t rans la t i ons  s hould no t  be c ons t r ued as  rep rese nt at ions  that  t he J apanes e yen amounts  hav e  
been,  c ou ld  hav e b een  or c ou ld  i n  t he f ut ur e be co nv e rt ed in t o  U.S .  do l la rs  a t th is  or  any o t her  ra t e o f  
exc hange.   
 

 
2.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Pr inc ip les  of  c ons ol ida t ion  
The cons o l ida t ed f ina nc ia l  s tat ement s inc lude the acc ounts  of  t he  Company a nd i t s 53 s ign i f i c ant ,  
subst ant ia l l y c o nt ro l l ed s ubs id ia r ies .   Invest men ts  in  6 a ff i l i at es  ove r wh ic h the Co mpa ny has  s igni f ic ant  
i nf luenc e  a re ac count ed f or  us ing t he e qu i t y met hod.  Int erc omp any t rans ac t ions  and acc ounts  have  been  
e l im in at ed upo n c ons o l i da t ion.  Any s ign if ic ant  d i f f e rence bet ween  the c os t  of  an investmen t  i n a  cons ol id at ed  
subs id iar y an d t he  equ it y  in t he net  ass et s at  the  dat e o f  ac qu is i t ion  is  amor t i ze d ov e r f iv e years .  I n t he 
e l im in at ion  of  inv es t ments  in  s ubs id ia r ies ,  t he ass et s and l ia b i l i t ies  of  t he  subs id ia r ies ,  inc lud ing  t he po rt i on  
at t r ibut ab le  t o n on-c on tro l l i ng s t oc kholde rs ,  are ev a luat ed us ing t he fa i r  va lue at  the  t ime  t he Comp any 
acq u ired co nt ro l of  t he res pec t iv e s ubs id iar y.  
 
For t he year  ended Ma rc h 31 ,  202 0,  t he  acc ounts  of  4  c ons o l id at ed s ubs id ia r ies  wer e inc luded in  t he sc ope  
of  c ons o l i da t ion  bas ed on a f isc a l  ye ar  t hat  end ed on  Dec ember  31.  Thes e subs id ia r ies  d id  not  pr epa re  fo r  
conso l idat ion  pur pos es  f inanc ia l  s t at ements  t ha t  c o rres pon ded  w it h  the f is ca l year of  t he  C ompany.  For  th e 
conso l idat ed s ubs id ia r ies  wi t h a f isc a l year-end d i f f e re nt  f rom t hat  o f  the Compa ny,  if  s ign i f ic ant  t rans ac t i ons  
occ ur re d bet ween t he i r  f is c a l year -end and t hat  o f t he Co mpany,  nec essa ry adjus t me nt s  wer e made  t o  ref l ec t  
the  t rans ac t ions in t he c ons ol ida t ed f inanc ia l  s t ate ment s.  
 
F rom t he f isc a l  ye ar ende d Marc h 31,  2020,  PT.  TOYOB O TRIA S ECOS YAR h as  been inc luded in t he scope  
of  c ons o l ida t ion  beca us e o f  i t s mat er ia l i t y.  TOYOBO FI LM SOLUTIONS LIMITED and PT.  INDONESIA 
TOYOBO FI LM SOLUTIONS hav e been inc lud ed in t he scope o f  cons o l ida t ion  due t o ac qu is i t ion  o f  t hei r  
sha res .  I n  add i t ion ,  KI NGO SHOJI  CO. ,  LTD.  has  been exc lu ded  f rom t he s c ope o f  conso l i da t ion  d ue to  t h e 
comp let ion  of  i ts  l iqu idat i on.  
 
 
 
Sec ur i t ies  
Av ai lab le - f or -s a le  s ec ur i t ies  wit h av ai la b le f a i r  mark et  v a lues  ar e s t at ed a t  fa i r  mar ke t va lue .  Unrea l i zed 
ga ins and loss es  on thes e s ec ur i t ies  are  repor t ed,  net  of  app l ic able  inc ome t ax es ,  as  a separa te  c omponent  
of  ne t  assets .  Rea l i zed gains  and loss es  on the s a le  o f  suc h s ec u r i t i es  are  c a lc u la t ed us ing mov ing av erage  
cos t .  Ot he r s ec ur i t ies  w it h no  av a i l ab le  f a i r  market  v alue are  s t a t ed at  mov ing av e rage c os t .  Held- t o-mat u r i t y  
sec ur i t ies  are s t at ed a t  amort i zed  cos t b y the s t ra ight - l ine met hod.  
 
 
 
Inv en t o r ies  
Inv en t o r ies  are  s t at ed pr inc ipa l l y a t  t he  lower o f  we ight ed av erage  c os t  or net  rea l izab le va lue at  t he  f i sc a l  
yea r -end.    
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Propert y,  p l an t  and equipment  
The Company  and i t s  cons o l idat ed  subs id ia r i es  us e pr inc ipa l l y t he s t ra ight - l ine met hod fo r t he d eprec ia t ion  
of  proper t y,  p la nt  and equ ipment .  
 
 
 
Leas e as se ts  
Leas e as se ts  unde r f in ance  lease t rans ac t io ns  t hat  t rans f e r owners h ip  of  t he  le as e as s ets  to the les see are  
amor t i ze d us ing the s ame deprec ia t i on  met hod ap p l ied  t o  t ang ib l e and int ang ib le  f ixe d ass ets .  
 
Leas e as se ts  unde r f in anc e  lease t rans ac t io ns  t hat  do not  t rans f er  owners hip  o f  the leas e as se ts  a re  
amor t i ze d us ing th e s t ra ight - l ine met hod ove r t he leas e t er m,  ass umin g t hat  t he  usefu l l i f e c o inc ides  wi t h  t he  
l eas e te rm and t he res idu a l  v alue is  ze ro.   
 
 
 
Int ang ib l e ass ets  
Oth er  in t ang ib le ass ets ,  inc luding sof t ware,  ar e amor t i zed us ing t he st ra i ght - l ine met hod ove r t he es t imat ed 
use fu l  l i f e o f  f iv e years .  
 
 
 
Bond iss uanc e e xpens es  
Bond iss uanc e e xpens es  are  expens ed as inc ur red .  
 
 
 
Res earc h and dev e lop me nt  expenses  
Expens es re l at ed t o res ea rc h and d ev e lopment  a re  c ha rged t o inc ome as  inc ur red.  Res earc h a nd 
dev e lo pment  expe ns es  we re ¥11, 69 0 m i l l i on ($107, 415 t hous and)  and ¥11, 022 mi l l ion  f or  t he yea rs  e nde d 
Marc h 31,  2020 and  2019,  respec t iv el y.  
 
 
 
A l l owanc e  fo r doubt f ul  rece iv ab les  
W it h r es pec t  t o norma l t rade acc ounts  rec e iv ab le,  a n a l lo wance f or  doub tf u l  rec e ivab les  is  s tat ed bas ed o n 
the  ac t ua l  rat e of  h ist or i ca l  bad debts .  For ce rt a i n ot he r doubt f u l rec e iv ab les ,  the unc o l l ec t ib le  amo unt  is  
i nd iv idua l l y es t imat ed.  
 
 
 
Ret ir ement  be nef i t s ac count ing  
1 .  A t t r i bu t ion met hod f or  es t imat ed  amo unts  of  re t i r eme nt  benef i t s  

The benef i t  f or mu la bas is  is  us ed fo r a t t r ibu t i ng  the es t imat ed amount  of  ret i re men t  ben ef i t s  to t he c ur rent  
per i od in  c a lcu lat ing  p ro jec t ed be nef i t  ob l ig at ions .  

 
2 .  P r io r  s e rv ic e  c os ts  and act uar ia l  d i f fe renc es  

Pr ior  s e rv ic e  c os ts  a re amor t iz ed us ing  the s t ra ight - l ine met hod ove r a ce rt a in  pe r iod wi t h in t he  av erag e 
rema in ing  ye ars  of  s erv ic e  o f t he e l ig ib l e  e mp loyees ( t en yea rs )  at  t he  t ime o f  re c ogn it ion .  Ac t uar ia l  
d i f f e renc es  are  amor t i zed us ing t he s t raight - l ine met hod ove r a ce rt a in  pe r io d wi t h in  t he  av erage 
rema in ing  ye ars  of  s erv ic e  o f t he e l ig ib l e  e mp loyees ( t en yea rs )  at  t he  t ime of  rec ogn it i on  and al loc at ed  
propo r t iona te ly f rom t he yea r f o l lo wing t he ye ar  o f rec ogn it ion .  

 
3 .  Un rec ogn ized ac t ua r i a l  ga ins  and  l oss es  a nd un recogn ized pr ior  s erv ic e c os ts  

Unrec ogn ized ac t ua r i a l  ga ins  and  l oss es  a nd un recogn ized pr ior  s erv ic e c os ts  are rep or te d as  
acc umu la t ed remeasurement s of  def ined  bene f i t  p l ans  wit h in  o ther  c omp reh ens ive income in net  ass ets ,  
af t er  adjus t ing  f or  t ax  e ffec ts .   

 
 
 
Ret ir ement  be nef i t s fo r  d i rec t ors ,  ope ra t ing  o ff ic ers  and c or por at e aud i t o rs  
Some c onso l idated s ubs id ia r i es  ac c r ue es t imat ed amounts  of  re t i re men t  benef it s  fo r  d ir ec t ors , opera t ing 
o ff ic e rs  and c orpora t e aud i to rs  equal  t o management ’ s  es t imat e  o f  the amou nts  that  would be payab le  a t the  
ba la nc e s he et  dat e  i f  t hey ret i red at  t ha t  dat e .  A moun ts  payab le t o d i rec t o rs  and  c orpora t e aud i t o rs  upon  
ret i re ment  ar e s ub jec t  t o t he  approv al  of  t he  s tockho lde rs  of  t he  subs id iar i es .  
 
 
 
Acc rued emp loyees ’ bonus es 
In orde r t o prepa re f o r t he  paymen t  of  emp lo ye e bonus es , the Co mpany and i t s  conso l i dat ed s ubs id i ar ies  
acc rue t he es t imat ed  amounts .  
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Prov is ion fo r  env i ronment a l  measures  
In  orde r t o  prepare fo r ex pend it ures  re lat ed t o env ironment a l meas ures  s uc h  as  t he remov al o f  hazard ous  
subst anc es  requi re d by la ws  and regu lat ions ,  t he C ompany and s ome c onso l idat ed s ubs id ia r ies  res erve  t he  
amou nt  expec t ed  t o  be inc ur red in fu tu re  pe r i ods .  
 
 
 
Trans la t io n of  f ore ig n c ur renc ies  
Account s denominat ed in  f ore ign  c ur renc ies ,  name ly c ash,  rec e iv ab les  and payab les  are t rans lat ed at  
yea r -end exc han ge r at es .  The assets  a nd l ia bi l i t i es  in t he  f i nanc ia l s t at emen ts  o f  the f o re ign c onso l idat ed  
subs id iar ies  are  als o t rans la t ed in t o J apanes e yen a t yea r-end exc han ge r at es .   I nc ome and expenses  are  
t rans lat ed at  the av erage exc hange ra tes  prev a i l in g  dur i ng t he ye ar.   Res u lt ing  t rans lat i on  ad jus tment s a r e 
ref lec te d in the c onso l ida ted f inanc ia l sta t ements  as  “Fore ign c ur renc y t rans la t ion ad jus t ment s ” and in  
non-c on tro l l i ng in t eres ts .  
 
 
 
De r iva t iv es  and hedge acc ount in g  
Der iva t iv e f inanc ia l ins t rument s  are  s t at ed a t  f a i r  v a lue ,  and c hanges in  t he fa i r  va lue are recogni ze d as  ga in  
or los s  un les s the der iv a t i ve f inanc ia l  inst ruments  are us ed f or hedging pur pos es.  I f  de r iv at iv e  f inanc ial  
i ns t rumen ts  a re us ed as  hedges  and  meet  c er t a in  hedg ing  c r i t er ia,  the  Company an d i t s  c onso l idat ed  
subs id iar ies  def e r rec ogn it ion  o f  ga in  or los s  res u l t i ng f rom a c hange in  t he fa i r  va lu e of  t he  der iv at iv e  
f inanc ia l  ins t r ume nt  un t i l  t he  re lat ed loss  o r ga in  on t he hed ged  i t em is  rec ogn ize d.  Howev e r,  wh en f orwar d  
fore ign exc hange c ont rac ts  are  us ed as  hedges and  meet  c er t a i n he dg ing c r i t e r ia,  the f ore ig n exchange  
forward c ont rac ts  and hedged i t ems  are  acc ount ed f or in t he f o l low ing manner :  
 
1 .  I f  a  f or e ig n exc hange f orward c ont rac t  i s e xec ut ed t o  hedg e an  ex is t ing  fo reign cu r r enc y rec e iv ab le  o r   

payab le,  t he  d if f erenc e,  i f  any,  betw een  t he J ap ane s e yen amou nt  of  t he  hedged f o re i gn cu rre nc y 
rec e iv ab le o r payab le  (t rans la t ed us ing t he spot  rat e at  t he inc ept ion date  o f  the cont rac t )  a nd t he book  
va lue of  t he rec e iv a b le  o r payab le  i s  rec og n iz ed  i n t he  s ta t ement  of  inc ome i n t he per iod  wh ic h inc l udes  
the  ince pt ion da te ,  and  t he  d isc ount  or  pre mium on t he  c ont ract  ( t he  d i f f e re nc e bet ween t he J apa n es e 
yen a mount  of  t he cont rac t  t rans lat ed us in g t he cont rac t ed f o rwar d ra te  and that  t rans lat ed us ing  t he s pot  
rat e at  t he  ince pt ion da te  o f  the co nt rac t )  is  recogni zed ov er  t he t erm of  t he c ont rac t .  
 

2 .  I f  a f o re ign exc hange f orwa rd c ont rac t  i s exec ut ed t o hedg e a f utu re  t rans ac t i on  deno minate d in  a  f o re ig n 
cur renc y,  t he  f u t u re  t r ansac t ion w i l l  b e rec o rded us ing th e c on t rac t ed fo rward  r a te,  and no ga in or  loss  
on the f orward f ore ign exc hange c ont rac t  w i l l  be  rec ogn ized.  

 
A ls o,  i f  in t erest  rat e  s wap c on trac ts  a re  us ed  as  hed ges  and meet  c er ta in  hed g ing c r i t er ia ,  t he  net  amount  t o  
be pa id  or rece iv ed und er  t he int e res t  ra t e s wap c ont rac t  is  ad ded to  o r d educ ted f ro m t he in t e res t  on the  
ass et s  or  l iab i l i t ies  fo r  wh ic h the s wap c ont r ac t  was  exec ute d.  
 
Be low a re the he dg ing der iv at iv e f inanc ia l  ins t rument s us ed b y t he Company and i t s  cons o l ida t ed  
subs id iar ies  and t he co r res ponding i t ems  hedged:  
 
Hedg ing  ins t ruments :       Hedged i t ems :  
Fore ign exc hange f o rward cont rac ts  Fut u re  t rans ac t ions  denom inat ed  in f o re ign  c ur renc ies  

 Fore ign c ur renc y rec e iv ab les  and payab les  
Int eres t  ra te  s wap cont rac ts  Int eres t  expens e on bo rrowings  
 
The Company and ce rt a in c ons o l idat ed s ubs id ia r i es  eva lua t e hedge ef f ec t iven es s  by c omp ar ing t he 
cumu lat ive  c hanges  in  cash f lows  or  t he c hanges  in  f a i r  v a lue of  the  hedged i t ems  and t he co rres pon ding  
cha nges in  t he hed g in g de r iva t iv e ins t rume nts .  
 
 
 
Amort i za t ion of  goodw i l l  
Goodwi l l  is  amor t ized  us ing t he s t ra ig ht - l ine met hod ove r  f i ve  yea rs .  
 
 
 
I mpai rment  of  f i xed ass ets  
In ac co rda nc e wi t h t he “Account ing S t andards fo r Imp air ment  of  F ixed  As se ts ” i ss ued b y t he Bus iness  
Account ing  Counc i l  in  J apan,  f ixed as se ts  a re  r ev iewed fo r impa i rme nt  whenev er ev ents  o r c ha nges  i n  
c irc ums ta nc es  ind ic at e t ha t t he c a rr ying amount  o f  an ass et  may not  be  rec ov era b le .  Recove rab i l i t y i s  
meas ured by c ompar i ng t he car r ying amo unt  of  a n as set  or gro up o f as sets  to  the es t ima ted und i sc ount ed 
fut ure c ash  f lows expec t ed t o be generat ed  b y th e ass et  or  g roup o f  ass ets .  I f  t he  car r ying amo unt  exc eeds  
the  es t imat ed  f ut ure cas h f lo ws ,  an impa ir ment  c harge is  rec ogn ize d f or  t he  amount  b y wh ich  t he c ar ry ing  
amou nt  exc eeds  t he gre at er  o f  net  rea l iz ab le  v a lue or  va lue in  us e .  
 
 
 
Inc ome t axes  
Inc ome t axes  compris e c orpora t ion t ax,  ent erp r is e t ax  and pre f ec t ura l  and mun ic ipa l  inhab i tants ’ t axes .   
The Compan y  and i t s  cons o l idat ed  s ubs id ia r i es  prov ide  f or  inc ome t ax es  at  t he amounts  c ur ren t l y payab le  
and f or  def er red  income  taxes  pert a in ing  t o  los s  c ar ryf o rwards ,  t empora ry d if fe rences  bet ween  f inanc ia l and  
tax rep ort ing and t empora ry d if f erences i n res pec t  t o the e l im ina t ion  of  un rea l i zed in t e rc ompan y p ro f i t s  and  
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ot her  ad jus tment s  f o r c ons o l ida t ion pu rpos es .  The ass et - l iab i l i t y me thod is  used  t o  rec ogn ize def er red  
i nc ome t ax as sets  and  l iab i l i t ies  f or  t he  e xpect ed f ut ure t ax cons equenc es  of  t empora ry  d if f e renc es  bet ween  
the  c ar ry i ng a mounts  of  assets  and l i ab i l i t i es  f or  f inanc ial  repor t ing  pur pos es  and t he amoun ts  used f or  
i nc ome t ax pu rpos es .  
 
 
 
Amount s  pe r  s hare  
Co mp ut at ions  of  net  prof i t  pe r s hare of  c ommon s t oc k are b as ed on t he  we ight e d av erage  numbe r of  s ha res  
out st and ing  dur ing each  pe r iod.  D i lu t ed  net  p ro f i t  pe r s hare  is  no t  d isc los ed bec aus e the Co mpany ha d no  
d i lut iv e s ha res  outs t and in g.  Compu tat io ns  of  ne t as set s  per s hare  of  c ommon s t ock are bas ed on  the nu mber  
of  s hares  o uts t and ing a t  year  end.  Cas h d iv idends  p er  s ha re repr es ent  amounts  app l ic ab le fo r  t he res pect iv e  
yea rs  on an acc rua l  b as is .   
 
Net  pro f i t ( loss ) pe r  s ha re  f or  t he yea rs  ended Marc h 31,  2020 and 2019 is ca lc u la t ed base d on the f o l low in g 
fac t ors .  

   
 
 
 
Chang es  in  acc ount ing  pol i c y 
Subs id iar ies  a dop t ing In t ernat ional  F inanc ia l Repor t ing S ta nda rds  (I FRS ) adopt ed I nt er nat iona l  F i nan c ia l  
Repor t in g S t andard 16 “Leas e”  (he re in af t e r “ IFRS 16” ) f ro m t he f i rs t  qua r te r o f  the  f isc a l yea r  ended Marc h  
31,  202 0.  Cons equent l y,  t he  lessee of  t he  l eas e,  in  p r inc ip le ,  rec ords  al l  l eas es  as assets  and  l ia bi l i t ies  i n  
the  ba lanc e  s heet s .  In app l y ing  t he acc ount ing s t andard ,  t he  C ompany adopts  t rans i t iona l  meas u re a l l ow ing 
the  us e of  a met hod t ha t recogn izes  a c umu la t i ve  ef f ec t  of  t he  app l ica t ion  of  t he acco un t ing  s t andard a t  th e  
beg inn ing of  t he ap p l ic a t ion.  The  e ff ec t  on  the c ons o l i da te d f in anc ial  s t a te ments  was  immat er ia l  in  t h is  f i sca l  
yea r.  
 
 
 
Account ing  s tandards iss ued but  not  yet  e ffec t iv e 
1 .  Account ing  S t andard  fo r  Rev enu e Recogni t ion  

“Acc ount ing  S t andard  fo r Rev enu e Recogni t ion ”  (ASBJ  S tat emen t No.  29 , Marc h 31,  2020)  
“ I mp le men t at ion  Gu idanc e on Acc ount ing  S tandard  fo r  Rev enue Recogni t ion”  
(ASBJ  Gu idanc e No.  30,  Marc h 31,  202 0)  
 

(1)  Summa ry  
Th is  is  a c omprehe ns iv e  ac c oun t ing st andard on revenue  rec ogn i t io n.  Rev enue is  recogn ize d us ing th e 
fo l lo wing f i ve  steps .  

1:  I dent i f y  t he  c ont ract (s ) w it h  a c us to mer  
2:  I dent i f y  t he  pe rf o rmance  ob l iga t io ns  in  t he c ont rac t  
3:  Det e rmine t he transac t ion pr ic e  
4:  A l loc at e t he t r ans ac t ion p r ice  t o t he pe rf o rma nc e ob l igat ions  in t he c ont rac t  
5:  Rec ogn ize rev enu e when,  or as ,  t he ent i t y s at is f i es  a per f or manc e ob l i gat ion 
 

(2)  E f fec t ive  dat e  
E f fec t ive  f rom the beg inn ing o f  t he f isc al  year  end ing  Marc h 31,  2022 
 

(3)  I mpac t  of  app l i c a t ion  
The impac t  of  t he app l i c at io n o f  t hese new s tandards o n the cons o l ida t ed f inanc ia l  s tat ement s  i s  c u rrent ly  
under ev a luat ion.  

 
2 .  Account ing  S t andard  fo r  Fa i r  Va lue  Me as ur ement ,  et c .  

“Acc ount ing  S t andard  fo r Fa i r  Va lue  Me as ur ement ”  (A SBJ  S tatemen t No.  30 , Ju ly 4 ,  2019)  
“ I mp le men t at ion  Gu idanc e on Acc ount ing  S tandard  fo r  Fa i r  Va lue Me as ur ement ”   
(ASBJ  S t at emen t No.  31 , Ju ly 4,  2019)  
“Acc ount ing  S t andard  fo r Meas ure men t  of  I nv en to r i es ” (ASBJ  S t at emen t No.  9,  Ju l y 4,  2019)  
“Acc ount ing  S t andard  fo r F i nanc ia l  I ns t rumen ts ” (ASBJ  S tat emen t No.  10 , Ju ly 4 ,  2019)  
“ I mp le men t at ion  Gu idanc e on Disc los ures  about  Fa ir  Va lue of  F in anc ial  Ins t ruments ”  
(ASBJ  S t at emen t No.  19 , Marc h 31,  2020)  
 

Millions of yen Thousands of shares Yen U.S. dollars
 Profit attributable

to owners of parent
Weighted  average
number of shares

For the year ended March 31, 2020:
Basic ¥13,774 88,794 ¥155.12 $1.425

Millions of yen Thousands of shares Yen
 Profit (loss)

attributable to
owners of parent

Weighted  average
number of shares

Net profit
(loss)

per share
For the year ended March 31, 2019:
Basic (¥603) 88,768 (¥6.80)

Net profit per share
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(1)  Summa ry  
“Acc ount ing  S t andard  fo r Fa i r  Va lue  Me as ur ement ”  and “ I mp le men t at ion  Gu id anc e on Acc ount ing 
S tan dar d f o r Fa i r  Va lue Measuremen t ”  (he re in af t er re f er red t o as  t he “Acc ount ing S tand ards fo r Fa i r  
Value Meas ureme nt ” )  were fo rmu lat ed in or der  to  enhanc e  the c omparab i l i t y  w i t h  t he prov is ions  o f 
i nt e rnat i ona l acc ount i ng s t andar ds ,  and acc ord in g ly,  gu ida nc e,  on t he met hod of  fa i r v al ue measurement  
was  presc r ib ed.  The Account i ng S t andar ds  f or  Fa ir  Va lue Measure ment  sha l l  ap pl y t o  t he f a ir  v a lue of  t he  
fo l lo wing i t ems .  

-  F i nanc ia l  inst ruments  under  “Account ing  S t andard  fo r  F i nanc ia l  I ns t rumen ts ”  
-  Inv en t o r ies  he ld  fo r  t ra d in g  purpos es  under “Acc ount ing  S t andard  fo r Meas ure men t  of  

Inv en t o r ies ”  
 
In add it ion ,  “ I mp le men t at io n Gu id anc e on D isc los ures  about  Fa ir  Va lue of  F in anc ial  Ins t ruments ” was  
rev is ed to  p res cr ibe t he  no tes  on t he b rea kdown of  f inanc ia l i ns t rumen ts  b y t he lev e l  of  the f a i r  v a lue 
h ier arc hy.  
 

(2 )  E f fec t ive  dat e  
E f fec t ive  f rom the beg inn ing o f  t he f isc al  year  end ing  Marc h 31,  2022 
 

(3)  I mpac t  of  app l i c a t ion  
The impac t  of  t he app l i c at io n o f  t hese new s tandards o n the cons o l ida t ed f inanc ia l  s tat ement s  i s  c u rrent ly  
under ev a luat ion.  

 
3 .  Account ing  S t andard  fo r  Di sc losu re of  Ac c ount ing Es t imat es  

“Acc ount ing S t and ard  f o r D isc losu re of  Ac c ount ing Es t imat es ”  (ASBJ  S tat emen t No.  31 , Marc h 31,  2020)  
 
(1)  Summa ry  

Conc ern ing t he d is c los ure of  “s ou rc es  o f  es t ima t ion  unc er t a i nt y”  requ i re d under  Pa rag raph 125 o f  t he  
Int erna t ion a l Ac c ount ing S tandards  ( IAS ) 1,  “P res ent at ion  o f  F inanc ia l  S t at ements , ”  (he re in af t er ref er r ed  
to as  “ IAS 1” )  i ss u ed in  2003 b y t he I nt e rnat iona l Acc ount ing  S t andards  Board ( I ASB),  reques t s  to 
cons ide r t he d isc los u re  requ i rement  o f  s uch in fo rmat io n in notes  und er  J apanes e GAAP were f i l ed  as  t he 
i nf o rmat ion is  h igh ly v aluab le  f or  t he readers  of  f inanc ia l s t at eme nts .  Ac cord ingl y,  t he Acc oun t ing 
S tan dar ds  B oard o f  Japan f ormu lat ed and is s ued Account in g S t andard fo r  Disc losu re o f  Acc ount ing 
Es t imat es  (he re inaf t er  ref er red  t o as  t he  “Account ing  S tandard ” ) .  
 
The bas ic  po l ic y of  t he  Account ing S t andards  B oar d of  Japan in  f o rmu la t ing  t he Account ing S t andard was  
not  to  broaden t he  s cope of  ind iv idua l not es  but  t o set  fo r t h pr inc ip les  ( t he ob jec t iv es  o f  the d isc losu re)  
i n l ight  o f  wh ic h an ent it y s hal l  de t ermine the s pec if ic  de ta i ls  t o be d isc los ed.  The Acco unt ing  S tandar d 
was  fo rmula t ed in  re f erenc e t o the p rov is ions  of  IAS 1,  Paragraph 125.  
 

(2)  E f fec t ive  dat e  
E f fec t ive  f rom the end ing o f  the  f is c al  ye a r ending Marc h 31,  2021  

 
4 .  Account ing  S t andard  fo r  Account ing Po l ic y  D is c los ures ,  Account ing Changes  and E rro r Correc t ions  

“Acc ount ing  S t andard  fo r  Account ing Po l ic y  D is c los ures ,  Account ing Changes  and E rro r Correc t ions ”  
(ASBJ  S t at emen t No.  24 , Marc h 31,  2020)  

 
(1)  Summa ry  

Rec e iv ing  o f f e red op in i ons  to  cons id er  the s ubs t ant ia l i t y o f  the in f o rmat ion pr ov ided  i n not es  on  
“P r inc i p les  and  p roc edures  of  acc ount i ng t reat ment  adopte d wh en t he prov is ion of  the re la t ed Account in g 
S tan dar d is  i ndef in i t e, ”  t he  Ac count ing S t andards  Board of  J apan made requ ired  rev is ions  to  and iss ued  
Account ing  S t andard  fo r  Account ing Po l ic y  D is c los ures ,  Account ing Changes  and E rro r Correc t ions .  
 
Furt he r,  i n improv ing t he s ubs t an t ia l i t y  of  t he  info rmat ion prov ided in  not es  on “P r inc i p les  and  p roc edures  
of  ac count ing t r eat ment  adopt ed when t he p rov is i on of  the rel a te d Ac count ing S t andard is  indef in it e, ”  t he  
prov is ions under  Ann ot at ions  on the Corpo ra te  Account ing Pr inc ip les  (Not e 1-2 ) sha l l  be  c ont inued s o 
tha t t he ex is t ing bus ines s  p rac t ic e is  not  af f ec t ed  p rov ided t hat  t he prov is ion of  the  rel at ed Ac count i ng  
S tan dar d is  def in i t e.  
 

(2 )  E f fec t ive  dat e  
E f fec t ive  f rom the end ing o f  the f is c al  ye a r ending Marc h 31,  2021  

 
 
 
Add it iona l I nf ormat ion  
Nov e l co ron av i rus  d is eas e (COVI D-19)  has  s p read ac ross  the g lob e s inc e i t  was  f i rs t  repor t ed i n Decembe r  
2019.  As  a res u l t ,  t he  nor ma l izat ion in  econom ic  act iv i t ies  is  expec t ed t o t ake s ome t ime wi t h s ubstant ia l 
s tagnat i on s een in  t he g loba l  and J apan es e ec onomies , and i t  is  d if f ic ul t  to  p re d ic t  how COVI D-19 wi l l  
con t inue t o s pr ead and  when i t  wi l l  be  cont a ined .  
 
As  s uc h,  t he  Group makes  a  judge ment  on whet he r  t o  rec ogn ize impa ir ment  loss  on f i xed ass et s  and i ts  
meas urement  and a ls o  on the rec ov erab i l i t y o f  def er red t ax ass et s under  a  p res umpt ion t hat  COVID-19 wi l l  
l inge r and imp ac t  sa les  f or  about  a yea r,  c ons ide r ing the c u r rent  unce r t ai n pros pec t s f o r t he f u tu re.  
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3.   F INANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

1.  Overa l l  s ta tus  o f  f inanc ia l  ins t ruments  
(1)  Po l ic y fo r  the  use o f  f inanc ia l  ins t ruments  

In  the Toyobo Group,  cash is  managed us ing on l y shor t - te rm f inanc ia l  ins t rument s  a f te r  ensur ing  the  
co l lec tab i l i t y o f  the  p r inc ipa l  and suf f ic ien t  l i qu id i t y.  Funds  a re  ra ised both  th rough d i rec t  access  to  
cap i ta l  markets  such as  through the issuance o f  bonds  and through ind i rec t  f inanc ing in  the form of  
bor row ings  f rom banks .  As  a  po l ic y,  t he  Compan y uses  der iva t ive  f inanc ia l  ins t ruments  on l y fo r  the  
purpose o f  hedg ing the r is k  o f  exchange ra t e  and in te res t  ra te  f luc tuat ion  in  the norma l  course o f  the  
Compan y’s  bus iness  and does  not  engage in  h igh l y leve raged t ransac t ions  or  specu la t ive  t ransac t ions  
us ing these ins t ruments .  
 

(2 )  Type and r is k  o f  f inanc ia l  ins t ruments  and re la ted r isk  management  s ys tem 
Notes  and accounts  rece iv ab le－ t rade a r is ing in  the norma l  course o f  the  Company’s  bus iness  are  
exposed t o  the c red i t  r isk  o f  cus tomers .  Th is  r isk  is  managed th rough t he mon i to r ing  o f  due dates  and  
ba lances  by cus tomer  and by examin ing the c red i t  s tand ing o f  ma jo r  cus tomers  in  each f isca l  pe r iod 
in  accordance w i th  the c red i t  management  ru les  o f  the  Compan y.  Mos t  notes  and accounts  pa yab le
－ t rade ar is ing in  the norma l  cours e o f  the  Compan y’ s  bus iness  are  due in  less  than one year .  

 
T rade rece ivab les  and pa yab les  denominat ed in  fo re ign cur renc ies  are  exposed to  the r is k  o f  
exchange ra te  f luc tuat ion .  In  pr inc ip le ,  the  rece iv ab les  and pa yab les  a re  hedged  for  the  net  pos i t ion  
r isk  rema in ing a f te r  c ross  cur renc y net t ing  b y us ing de r iva t ive  ins t ruments  such as  fore ign exchange  
forward cont rac ts .  

 
Inves tment  secur i t ies  cons is t  ma in ly o f  s tocks  o f  our  c us tomers  and  supp l ie rs  he ld  in  c onnec t ion  w i th  
our  ongo ing bus iness  re la t ionsh ips  and are  exposed to  the r is k  o f  market  pr ic e  f luc tuat ion .  The 
Co mp any an d i t s  c onso l idat ed s ubs id ia r ies  regu lar l y mon i to r  the  cu r rent  market  p r ice  o f  these s tocks  
and the f inanc ia l  cond i t ions  o f  the  issuers ,  i . e . ,  ou r  cus tomers  and supp l ie rs ,  and rev iew the s ta tus  o f  
our  s toc k ho ld ings  on an ongo ing bas is ,  tak ing in t o  cons ide ra t ion  our  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  these 
cus tomers  and supp l ie rs .  

 
Shor t - te rm bor row ing is  us ed ma in ly t o  f inance operat ing  t ransac t ions .  Long- t erm loans  payab le  and 
corpo ra t e  bonds  a re  used  ma in l y to  f inance cap i ta l  improvements ,  o t he r  inves t ments  and lend ing.  Fo r  
loans  pa yab le  exposed t o  t he r is k  o f  in te res t  ra t e  f luc t uat ion ,  de r iva t ives  (ma in l y in teres t  ra t e  swaps)  
are  used as  hedg ing ins t ruments  on an ind iv idua l  cont rac t  bas is  to  avo id  the r isk  o f  changes  in  in te res t  
payments .  The hedg ing ins t ruments ,  hedged i t ems ,  hedg ing po l ic y and the met hod used to  assess  
hedge e f fec t iveness  in  re la t ion  to  hedge account ing a re  desc r ibed in  the Note  2 ,  “S ign i f icant  
Account ing Po l ic ies . ”  

 
In  accordance w i th  t he in te rna l  ru les  o f  the  To yobo Group,  de r iva t ive  t ransac t ions  are  executed and 
managed under  a  s ys t em that  seg regates  func t ions  and p romotes  mutua l  chec k ing,  inc lud ing (1 )  the  
es tab l ishment  o f  r is k  management  po l ic ies  b y t he  d i rec tor  in  cha rge o f  f inance,  (2)  t he  execut ion o f  
t ransac t ions  and management  o f  pos i t ions  b y the F inance Depar t ment  and (3 )  t he  va luat ion  o f  and 
account ing for  f inanc ia l  ins t ruments  by the Account ing and Cont ro l  Depar tment .  Overa l l  de r iva t ive  
pos i t ions  ac ross  the To yobo Group are  managed b y t he F inance Depar t ment  and repo r ted to  t he 
d i rec tor  in  charge o f  f inanc e.  The Compan y and i t s  conso l ida ted subs id ia r ies  dea l  w i th  h igh ly ra ted 
f inanc ia l  ins t i tu t ions  as  counterpa r t ies  to  these t ransac t ions  and no counterpa r t y defau l t  is  expec ted.  
 
T rade payab les  and in te res t  bear ing debt  such as  bo r row ings  c reate  exposure to  l iqu id i t y r is k .  The 
l iqu id i t y r is k  a r is ing f rom t hese l iab i l i t ies  is  managed  a t  the  ind iv idua l  compan y leve l  based  on  cash  
f low p ro jec t ions  p repared by each g roup compan y.  I n  add i t ion ,  the  l iqu id i t y r is k  o f  the  domes t ic  
subs id ia r ies  is  managed cent ra l l y b y the Company us ing a  cash management  s ys tem.  
 

(3)  Supp lement ar y exp lanat ion  on d isc losu re  about  fa i r  v a lue o f  f inanc ia l  ins t rumen ts  
In  add i t ion  to  t he fa i r  va lues  dete rmined b y market  p r ice ,  the  fa i r  va lue o f  f inanc ia l  ins t ruments  
inc ludes  a  reasonab ly dete rmined va lue i f  no  market  p r ice  is  ava i lab le .  Cer ta in  assumpt ions  used fo r  
such determinat ions  are  sub jec t  to  change.  Accord ing l y,  the  resu l t s  o f  the  va luat ions  cou ld  change i f  
d i f fe rent  assumpt ions  were  used.  Fur t he rmore,  the  cont rac tua l  and o ther  amount s  o f  der iva t ive  
t ransac t ions  inc luded in  Note  5 ,  “Der iv a t ives  and hedge account ing, ”  do not  re f lec t  the  market  r isk  
assoc ia t ed w i t h  the de r iva t ive  t ransac t ions  themse lves .  
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2.  D isc losure  about  fa i r  va lue ,  e tc . ,  o f  f inanc ia l  ins t ruments  
 The fo l low ing tab le  summar izes  the ca r r ying amounts  and  the  es t imated fa i r  va lues  o f  f inanc ia l  

ins t ruments  as  o f  March 31,  2020 and 2019.  Note  that  the  fo l low ing tab le  does  not  inc lude un l is ted equ i t y  
secur i t ies  and ce r ta in  o the r  secur i t ies  whos e fa i r  va lue is  ext reme ly d i f f icu l t  to  es t imate .   

 
* Derivative assets and liabilities are presented on a net basis, and an amount enclosed in parentheses ( ) indicates a  net  liability 

position. 
 

 
* Derivative assets and liabilities are presented on a net basis, and an amount enclosed in parentheses ( ) indicates a net  liability 

position. 
 
 
(Not es )  
1.  M et hods  used t o de t e rm ine t he  fa i r  v a lu e of  f inanc ia l  ins t ruments  and  mat t ers  conc e rn ing mar keta b le  

sec ur i t ies  and der iva t i v es .  
 

Assets  
(1)  Cas h and t ime de pos it s  and ( 2)  Not es  and acc ount s  rec e iv ab le－ t rade  

As  c as h and t ime depos i t s  and  not es  and ac counts  rece iv ab le－ t rade a re s et t led wi t h in  a  
sho rt  per iod,  t he i r  f a i r  v a lue  is  nea r ly e qua l t o  t he c ar r ying amount .  The ref o re,  t he ca r ry in g 
amou nt  is  report ed as the f a i r  v a l ue.  

 
(3)  I nv es t ment  s ec ur i t i es  

The fa i r  va lue of  av a i l ab le- f or -s a le  s ec ur i t ies  is  det e rm ined bas ed  on t he  pr ic e quot ed on t he 
exc hange ( fo r  s t ocks)  or  the pub l is hed net  as se t va lue per un i t  ( f o r  invest ment  t rus ts ).  Fo r 
i nv es t ments  in  i nv est men t par t ners h ips  t hat  are  deemed to  be secu r i t ies ,  t he pro por t iona l  
equ i t y  s ha re  in  t he  v a lue of  t he pa rt ners h ip as sets  i s  repo rted as  t he fa i r  va lue.  See Not e  
4,  ”Sec ur i t ies , ”  f o r  inf o rma t io n on s ecu r i t ies  c at egor ized b y t he  pu rpos e  fo r  wh ic h they are  
he ld .  

  

Book value Fair value Difference Book value Fair value Difference

For the year ended March 31, 2020:
(1) Cash and time deposits ¥25,247 ¥25,247 ¥ - $231,986 $231,986 $ -
(2) Notes and accounts receivable - trade 93,553 93,553 - 859,625 859,625 -
(3) Investment securities
     Available-for-sale securities 13,807 13,807 - 126,868 126,868 -
Total assets ¥132,607 ¥132,607 ¥ - $1,218,478 $1,218,478 $ -

(1) Notes and accounts payable - trade ¥50,016 ¥50,016 ¥ - $459,579 $459,579 $ -
(2) Short-term borrowing 32,027 32,027 - 294,285 294,285 -
(3) Long-term debt
     Corporate bonds 55,000 54,770 230 505,375 503,262 2,113 
     Long-term loans payable 84,360 85,566 (1,206) 775,154 786,235 (11,082)
Total liabilities ¥221,403 ¥222,379 (¥976) $2,034,393 $2,043,361 ($8,968)

Derivatives (*) (¥6) (¥6) ¥ - ($55) ($55) $ -

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

Book value Fair value Difference

For the year ended March 31, 2019:
(1) Cash and time deposits ¥22,318 ¥22,318 ¥ -
(2) Notes and accounts receivable - trade 85,790 85,790 -
(3) Investment securities
     Available-for-sale securities 21,729 21,729 -
Total assets ¥129,837 ¥129,837 ¥ -

(1) Notes and accounts payable - trade ¥44,772 ¥44,772 ¥ -
(2) Short-term borrowing 41,882 41,882 -
(3) Long-term debt
     Corporate bonds 40,000 40,199 (199)
     Long-term loans payable 81,442 82,078 (636)
Total liabilities ¥208,096 ¥208,931 (¥835)

Derivatives (*) (¥58) (¥58) ¥ -

Millions of yen
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L iab i l i t ies  
(1)   Not es  and acc ount s payab le－ t rade and (2 )  Shor t - t er m bor ro w ing  

As  not es  and ac count s  pa yab le－ t ra de and s hor t - t e r m bor row ing a re  s et t led w i t h in a  s ho rt  
per i od,  t he i r  f a i r  v a lue  is  nea r l y  equ a l to  t he c arr y ing  amo unt .  The re fo re ,  t he c a rr y i ng amount  
i s repo r t ed as  t he f a i r  v a lue .  

 
(3 )  Long- t er m debt  
-  Co rporat e  bonds  

The fa i r  va lue o f  c orpo ra t e  bonds is  bas ed on the marke t  pr ic e.  
 
-  Lo ng- t er m l oans payab le  

The fa i r  va lue of  l ong - t erm l oans payable  is  det ermined  by d is co unt i ng t he s um of  t he  
pr inc i pa l and in t e res t  payments  at  an in t eres t  ra te  t hat  i s es t imat ed to  be app l ic ab le  t o new ly  
ar ran ged  debt  o f  s im i l a r  qua l i t y.  Fo r v ar iab le - rat e,  long- t erm l oan s payab le ,  t he  ca r ry ing  
amou nt  is  repo rt ed as the f a i r  v a lue as  i t  is  c ons ider ed  t o be a reas onab le  approx imat ion of  
fa i r  v a lue bec ause s uc h l oans payable  re f lect  market  i n te res t  rat es  in  a s ho r t  per i od and t he re  
has  been no s igni f ica nt  c hange in  t he c red i t wor t h i nes s  of  t he  Compan y.   

 
De r iva t iv e t rans act ions  
Ref er  t o t he No te  5 ,  “Der iva t iv es  and hedge acc ount ing. ”  
 

 
2 .  F inanc ia l  ins t ruments  whose fa i r  va lue is  ext reme ly d i f f icu l t  to  es t imat e  

       
For t he  f inan c ia l  inst ruments  s hown i n t he abov e  t ab le,  quot ed market  pr ic e  was  not  ava i lab le.  
Theref o re ,  t he  f a ir  v a lue was  c ons ide red t o be ex t reme ly  di f f ic u l t  t o  es t imat e ,  a nd t he ins t ruments  we re  
not  inc luded in  “ I nv es t ment  s ec ur i t i es ”  i n t he abov e t ab le  s ummar iz ing  t he c ar ry in g amoun ts  a n d 
es t imat ed f a i r  v a lues  o f f inanc ial  ins t rument s .  

 
 

3 .  S tocks  o f  subs id ia r ies  and a f f i l i a tes  a re  a lso  not  inc luded in  “ Inves t ment  secur i t ies ”  in  the  above tab le  
summar iz ing the ca r r ying amounts  and es t imated fa i r  va lues  o f  f inanc ia l  ins t ruments .  For  s tocks  o f  
l is ted subs id iar ies  and a f f i l i a tes ,  the  car r ying amount  was  ¥2, 804 mi l l i on  ($25,765 thousand)  and 
¥2,869 mi l l i on  for  the  years  ended March 31,  2020 and 2019,  respec t iv e ly,  the  fa i r  va lue was  ¥2,52 3  
mi l l i on  ($23,183 thousand)  and ¥1,188 mi l l i on ,  res pec t ive l y,  and the d i f fe rence was  a  negat ive  ¥281 
mi l l i on  ($2,582 thousand)  and ¥1,681 mi l l i on ,  respec t ive l y.  The ca r r ying amount  o f  s tocks  o f  un l is t ed  
subs id ia r ies  and a f f i l i a tes  was  s ta ted a t  ¥3, 084 mi l l i on  ($28,338 thousand)  and ¥4,063 mi l l i on  for  t he  
yea rs  ended March 31,  2020 and 2019,  respec t ive l y.  

  

2020 2019 2020

  Non-listed equity securities ¥1,221 ¥1,084 $11,219

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
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4.   SECURITIES  

The fo l low ing  t ab les  summar ize  acq u is i t io n c os t  and boo k v a lue ( f a i r  v a lue ) of  s ec ur i t ies w it h av a i l ab le f a i r  
va lues  as of  Marc h 31,  2020 and 20 19.  
 
Av ai lab le - f or -s a le  s ec ur i t ies  

 
Un l is t ed equ it y s ec u r i t ies  (Carr ying amo unt :  ¥1,221 mi l l i on ,  $11,219 thousand)  a re  not  inc luded in  “Ot her” ,  
bec aus e t hey hav e no mark et  p r i c e and t he i r  fa i r  va lues  a re  t he re f ore dee med  as  being inf eas ib le  t o  
acc ura t e ly  det er mine.  
 
The fo l low ing  t ab le  s umma r izes  s a les  of  av a i l ab le- f or -s a le  s ec ur i t ies  and t he r e la t ed g a ins  and  l oss es  f or  t he  
yea rs  end ed M arc h 31 ,  2020 and 201 9.  

  
  

Securities with book values exceeding
acquisition costs:
Equity securities ¥3,604 ¥10,347 ¥6,743 ¥6,443 ¥19,993 ¥13,550
Other 7 12 5 6 13 7

¥3,611 ¥10,359 ¥6,748 ¥6,449 ¥20,006 ¥13,557

Securities with book values not exceeding
acquisition costs:
Equity securities ¥3,975 ¥3,344 (¥631) ¥1,763 ¥1,616 (¥147)
Other 104 104 - 107 107 -
Total ¥4,079 ¥3,448 (¥631) ¥1,870 ¥1,723 (¥147)

Securities with book values exceeding
acquisition costs:
Equity securities $33,116 $95,075 $61,959
Other 64 110 46

$33,180 $95,185 $62,005

Securities with book values not exceeding
acquisition costs:
Equity securities $36,525 $30,727 ($5,798)
Other 956 956 -
Total $37,480 $31,682 ($5,798)

Millions of yen
2020 2019

Acquisition
cost

Book value Difference
Acquisition

cost
DifferenceBook value

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Acquisition
cost

Book value Difference

2020 2019 2020
Total sales of available-for-sale securities ¥1,014 ¥682 $9,317
Related gains 448 198 4,117 
Related losses - 3 - 

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
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5.   DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING 

The Compan y  and so me of  i t s  c ons ol ida t ed subs id ia r i es  us e der iv at iv es t o  manage r i sks  re la t ed t o f o re ig n 
cur renc ies  and int er es t  ra t es .  D et a i ls  of  t hes e der iva t iv es  are  as  f o l lo ws .  
 
Cu r re nc y re la t ed t ransac t ions  not  des ignat ed as  hedg ing t rans ac t ions  at  Ma rc h 31,  202 0 and  2019 c ons is t ed  
of  t he  f o l l ow ing :  

 
(Not e)  The f a i r v al ues o f  the t rans ac t io ns  are  prov ided b y f inanc ial  ins t i t ut ions .  

Cur re nc y re la t ed t ransac t ions  des ignat ed as  h edg ing  t rans ac t ions  at  Marc h 31,  2020 and 2019  c ons is t ed o f  
the  f o l lowing:  

 
  *1.  The f a i r  v a lues  of  t he  t ransac t ions  a re  det er mined by t he f orwar d exc hange rat e.   

*2 .  Monet ary ob l iga t ions  denomin at ed  i n  f ore i gn c ur renc ies fo r  wh ic h f ore ign e xcha nge  fo rward  c ont racts  
are  use d t o he dge  fo rei gn  cu r renc y f luc t uat io n are t rans lat ed at  t he cont rac ted ra t e if  t he  f orward  
con trac t  qua l i f ies  f or  hedge acc ount ing .  

*3 .  S inc e f o re ign exc hange f orw ard cont rac ts  unde r t he a l t erna t iv e  met hod a re  acc ount ed fo r as  an  in te gra l  
par t  of  acc ounts  rece iv ab le  and  acc oun ts  payab le as  hedg ed i t ems ,  t he ir  f a i r  v a lues  are inc luded i n t he 
fa i r  v a lue of  the under ly ing  acc ounts  rec e iv ab le  and  a cc oun ts  payab le .  

 
 

Over the counter
  Forward
      Sold ¥2,485 ¥5 ¥5 ¥2,475 (¥11) (¥11)
      Bought 120 1 1 201 1 1
Total ¥2,605 ¥6 ¥6 ¥2,676 (¥10) (¥10)

Over the counter
  Forward
      Sold $22,834 $46 $46
      Bought 1,103 9 9
Total $23,936 $55 $55

Millions of yen
2020

Contract
amount

Fair value
Revaluation
gain (loss)

Contract
amount

Fair value
Revaluation
gain (loss)

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Contract
amount

2019

Fair value
Revaluation
gain (loss)

Deferral hedge accounting  *1
   Forward
      Sold Accounts receivable - trade ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥30 ¥ - ¥1
      Bought Accounts payable - trade 1,031 - 2 1,568 - (33)
Alternative method  *2
   Forward
      Sold Accounts receivable - trade - - - 56 -   *3
      Bought Accounts payable - trade 297 -   *3 348 -   *3
Total ¥1,328 ¥ - ¥2 ¥2,002 ¥ - (¥32)

Deferral hedge accounting  *1
   Forward
      Sold Accounts receivable - trade $ - $ - $ -
      Bought Accounts payable - trade 9,473 - 18
Alternative method  *2
   Forward
      Sold Accounts receivable - trade - - -
      Bought Accounts payable - trade 2,729 -   *3
Total $12,203 $ - $18

Major hedged items

Maturity over
 1 year

TotalMajor hedged items

Maturity over
 1 year

Total
Maturity over

 1 year
Total

2020
Millions of yen

2019

Fair value
Contract amount

Fair value
Contract amount

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Fair value
Contract amount
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Int eres t  ra te  rel a te d t rans ac t io ns  des igna t ed as hedg ing t rans ac t io ns  a t  March 31,  2020  and 2019 cons ist ed  
of  t he  f o l l ow ing :    

 
(Not e)  The f a i r v al ue o f  t he t rans ac t ions  is  p rov ided  ma in l y  b y f i nanc ia l  ins t it ut ions .  

 
 
 

 
6.   INVENTORIES 

Inv en t o r ies  at  Marc h 31,  2020 and 2019 c ons is t ed o f the f o l low ing:  

 
 
 
 

 
7.   IMPAIRMENT LOSS 

Major  ass ets  and  ass et  g roups  rec ogn iz in g impa irmen t  loss  du r in g t he f i sc a l  yea r ended March  31,  2020 
cons is t ed of  t he f o l lo win g:  

 
 
The Toyobo Group’s  bus iness  ass et s are c l ass i f ied  in  admin i st rat iv e acc ount ing  and,  id le  as se ts  a re  grou ped  
toget he r on an ind iv idua l  bas is.  The rec ov erab le  v a lu e of  t he  bus iness  assets  f e l l  be low t he ir  book v a lue du e 
to t he id l e o r t he chang es  in  t he bus ines s env ironmen t .  The re f o re ,  t he book v a lue of  t hese  ass ets  has  been 
mark ed down  to  t he rec ov erab le  v a lue,  and t he  wri t e -down was  t rea t ed as an impa ir ment  los s ,  amount in g t o  
¥2,397 mi l l i on  ($22,025 thousand) .  
 

  
 
In c a lc u lat ing  t he  rec ov e rab le va lue  of  t he as set s  and as set  gro ups ,  t he  rec ov e rab le v a lue o f  land a dopt ed  
net  s a les va lue  s ta t ed in  t he  s a les ag reement  f o r  land .  Ot he r  f ixed  ass ets  ado pt ed  t he v a lue in  us e , wh ich 
d isc ount ed 2. 9%  and  4 . 3% fo r the f ut ure  c as h f lows  c a lc u lat ed  b y reas o nab le es t imat es .  
  

Deferral hedge accounting of interest rate swaps (Note)
Long-term loans payable

¥15,000 ¥15,000 (¥14) ¥15,000 ¥15,000 (¥17)
¥15,000 ¥15,000 (¥14) ¥15,000 ¥15,000 (¥17)

Deferral hedge accounting of interest rate swaps (Note)
Long-term loans payable

$137,830 $137,830 ($129)
$137,830 $137,830 ($129)Total

Contract amount
Fair value

Major hedged items Total
Maturity over

 1 year

Receive - float / Pay - fixed

Receive - float / Pay - fixed
Total

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Contract amount
Fair value

Contract amount
Fair value

Major hedged items Total
Maturity over

 1 year
Total

Maturity over
 1 year

Millions of yen
2020 2019

2020 2019 2020
  Finished goods ¥49,150 ¥45,849 $451,622
  Work-in-process 12,750 13,704 117,155
  Raw materials 11,378 11,218 104,548
  Supplies 7,351 6,028 67,546

¥80,629 ¥76,799 $740,871

Millions of yen Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Location
TOYOBO CO., LTD.
 (Tsuruga, Fukui)  (Manufacturing facilities for airbag yarns)  Machinery and equipment

 TOYOBO  CHEMICALS(Thailand) Co., Ltd.
 (Chonburi, Thailand) (Manunfacturing facilities for copolyester)  Machinery and equipment

 Business assets  Buildings and structures

 Others

Usage Type
 Business assets  Buildings and structures

 Others

Millions of yen
Thousands of
 U.S. dollars

 Buildings and structures ¥430 $3,951
 Machinery and equipment 1,865 17,137
 Land 2 18
 Tangible assets and other 100 919

¥2,397 $22,025
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8.   INCOME TAXES 

Sign i f icant  components  o f  t he  Company’s  and i t s  cons o l ida ted subs id ia r ies ’  de fe r red income tax assets  and  
l iab i l i t i es  as  o f  March 31,  2020 and 2019 are  set  fo r t h  be low.   

   
Def er red inc ome t ax l iab i l i t ies  on l and  rev a lua t ion o f  ¥21, 277 mi l l ion  ($195, 507 t hous and) and ¥ 21, 277  
m il l i on  as  o f Marc h 3 1,  2020 an d 20 19,  res pec t ive ly,  we re rec ogn iz ed i n long - t e rm l iab i l i t ies .  
 
 
 
 
  

2020 2019 2020
Deferred income tax assets:
  Accrued employees' bonuses ¥1,572 ¥1,485 $14,445 
  Devaluation loss on inventories 697 498 6,404 
  Defined benefit liability 7,359 6,084 67,619 
  Allowance for doubtful receivables 195 181 1,792 
  Provision for environmental measures 11 128 101 
  Impairment loss 1,448 850 13,305 
  Write-down of investment securities 395 466 3,630 
  Depreciation 286 270 2,628 
  Tax losses carried forward 6,246 4,652 57,392 
  Unrealized gains 9,389 9,248 86,272 
  Securities acquired through merger 105 195 965 
  Tax losses carried forward of subsidiaries 700 1,031 6,432 
  Loss due to fire 1,114 2,805 10,236 
  Other 2,482 1,566 22,806 
Subtotal deferred income tax assets 31,999 29,459 294,027 
  Valuation allowance for tax losses carried forward (6,144) (4,246) (56,455)
  Valuation allowance for temporary differences (2,422) (2,553) (22,255)
Total valuation allowance (8,566) (6,799) (78,710)
Net deferred income tax assets 23,433 22,660 215,317 

Deferred income tax liabilities:
  Reserve for deferred gains on sale of property (431) (439) (3,960)
  Undistributed earnings of overseas subsidiaries and affiliates (1,841) (1,589) (16,916)
  Consolidation adjustment of allowance for doubtful receivables (0) (2) (0)
  Valuation difference of subsidiaries (1,963) (1,522) (18,037)
  Tax deferred gains on assets transferred to a new company (1,335) (1,335) (12,267)
  Tax deferred gains on spin-off (497) (497) (4,567)
  Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (1,944) (4,209) (17,863)
  Foreign currency translation adjustments (9) (11) (83)
Total deferred income tax liabilities (8,020) (9,604) (73,693)
Net deferred income tax assets ¥15,413 ¥13,056 $141,625 

2020 2019 2020
  Investments and other assets 17,977 17,276 165,184 
  Long-term liabilities (2,564) (4,220) (23,560)
Total ¥15,413 ¥13,056 $141,625 

Millions of yen Thousands of
U.S. dollars
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Balanc e by  t ax l oss  ca r r yf orward deadl i ne  and def er red  inc ome t ax ass ets .  A b reakdown of  t ax loss es  c ar r ie d  
forward an d v a luat ion  a l l owanc e by exp i r y date  as  of  Marc h 31,  2020 is  as  f o l lows :  

 
*The amoun ts  a re det ermined by mul t ip ly ing t he  c o r res pon din g t ax los ses ca rr ied f o rward b y t he s ta t ut ory t ax  
rat e.  
 

 
*The amoun ts  a re det ermined by mul t ip ly ing t he  c o r res pon din g t ax los ses ca rr ied f o rward b y t he s ta t ut ory t ax  
rat e.  
 
A breakdown of  t ax  loss es c ar r i ed fo rward and v alua t ion a l lowanc e by exp i ry dat e as  of  Marc h 31,  2019 is  as  
fo l lo ws :  

 
*The amoun ts  a re det ermined by mul t ip ly ing t he  c o r res pon din g t ax los ses ca rr ied f o rward b y t he s ta t ut ory t ax  
rat e.  
 
The Compan y  is  s ub jec t  t o  a  n umber of  taxes  bas ed on  inc ome,  whic h,  in  t he aggrega te ,  ind ic a te  a s t at ut o ry  
tax rat e  in  J apan of  approx imat e l y 31. 0% f or  bot h th e year s ended March 31,  2020  and 2019 .  The e f fec t iv e  
tax ra te  fo r  the  years  ended March 31,  2020 and 2019 d i f fe r  f rom s ta tu to r y t ax ra te  as  fo l lows :  

 
*1  Not es a re  omi t t ed as  t he d if f e rences  bet ween  the s t at uto ry tax ra t e and t he e f fec t iv e t ax ra te  of  inc ome 

taxes  af t er  tax  ef fect  acc ount ing a re 5%  o r less  of  t he s t atu to ry  t ax rat e.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Within 1st year ¥275 (¥261) ¥14 
2nd year 229 (227) 2 
3rd year 27 (27) - 
4th year 123 (123) - 
5th year 98 (98) - 
thereafter 5,494 (5,408) 86 
Total ¥6,246 (¥6,144) ¥102 

Tax losses
carried forward *

Valuation allowance Deferred income
tax assets

Within 1st year $2,527 ($2,398) $129 
2nd year 2,104 (2,086) 18 
3rd year 248 (248) - 
4th year 1,130 (1,130) - 
5th year 900 (900) - 
thereafter 50,482 (49,692) 790 
Total $57,392 ($56,455) $937 

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Tax losses

carried forward *
Valuation allowance

Deferred income
tax assets

Within 1st year ¥278 (¥272) ¥6 
2nd year 414 (296) 118 
3rd year 304 (304) - 
4th year 206 (96) 110 
5th year 210 (198) 12 
thereafter 3,240 (3,080) 160 
Total ¥4,652 (¥4,246) ¥406 

Tax losses
carried forward *

Valuation allowance Deferred income
tax assets

2020 2019
 Statutory tax rate 31.0%
 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 79.1   
 Nontaxable dividend income (112.8)  
 Tax losses carried forward (51.8)  
 Tax credits (34.2)  
 Valuation allowance 189.9   
 Equity in income of unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates *1 (132.6)  
 Unrealized gains and losses 14.2   
 Undistributed earnings of overseas subsidiaries and affiliates 210.8   
 Difference in tax rate 0.3   
 Goodwill 34.2   
 Effect of exclusion of subsidiaries from consolidation 703.0   
 Other (40.0)  
 Effective tax rate 891.1%
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9.   SHORT-TERM BORROW INGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT 

Short - t er m bor ro w ings  at  Marc h 31,  202 0 and 2019 c ons is t ed of  s hor t - t e r m loans due wi t h in  one year  bea r i ng  
i nt e res t  a t  an ave rage ra t e  of  0. 65% and  0.75% , res pect iv e l y.  
 
Long- t er m debt  at  Marc h 31,  2020  and  2019 c ons is ted o f  t he  f o l low ing :   

 
   
 
The agg regate  annua l  mat ur i t ies  o f  long- te rm debt  outs tand ing as  o f  March 31,  2020 were as  fo l lows :  

 
  
The Compan y  has  c red i t  f ac i l i t y c ommi t ments  w it h t h ree banks  in  order  t o s ec ure f in anc ing.  The t ot al  unused 
c red it  ava i lab le  t o t he Co mpany t hrough thes e fac i l i t i es  a t  March  31,  2020 was  ¥17, 500 mi l l ion  ($160, 801  
thous and).  
  
  

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Unsecured:
0.28% bonds due 2019 ￥ － ¥10,000 $－
0.45% bonds due 2021 5,000 5,000 45,943
0.16% bonds due 2021 5,000 5,000 45,943
0.31% bonds due 2023 10,000 10,000 91,886
0.29% bonds due 2025 10,000 10,000 91,886
0.18% bonds due 2024 15,000 － 137,830
0.23% bonds due 2026 10,000 － 91,886
Long-term loans payable, principally maturing through 2078 at the  
weighted average interest rate of 0.94% as of March 31, 2020
    Secured － 7 －
    Unsecured 84,361 81,435 775,163
Lease obligations maturing serially through 2040 3,751 1,446 34,467
Total 143,112 122,888 1,315,005
Less amount due within one year 9,285 22,712 85,317

¥133,827 ¥100,176 $1,229,689

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2021 ¥9,285 $85,317
2022 19,297 177,313
2023 19,908 182,928
2024 33,458 307,434
2025 22,567 207,360
Thereafter 38,597 354,654

¥143,112 $1,315,005

Millions of yenYear ending March 31
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10.  EMPLOYEES SEVERANCE AND RETIREMENT BENEFITS  
Overv iew o f  def ined benef i t  p lans  
The Company and ce r ta in  conso l ida ted subs id iar ies  have es tab l ished funded and unfunded def ined benef i t  
p lans  and def ined cont r ibu t ion  p lans .  Under  the def ined benef i t  co rpora t e  pens ion p lan and lump-sum 
severance pa yment  p lan,  a  lump-sum payment  o r  pens ion pa yment  based on the  emp lo yee ’s  sa lar y a t  the  
t ime o f  re t i rement  o r  te rminat ion  and length  o f  serv ice  is  p rov ided.    
 
In  cer ta in  cases ,  the  Company pa ys  emp loyees  who a re  re t i r ing  add i t iona l  re t i rement  benef i t s  tha t  a re  not  
cons ide red to  be re t i remen t  benef i t  ob l iga t ions  as  ca lcu la ted under  ac tua r ia l  me thods  accord ing to  
re t i rement  benef i t  account ing p r inc ip les .  A l t hough one conso l ida ted subs id iar y subsc r ibes  to  a  co rpora te  
pens ion p lan under  a  mu l t i - emp lo ye r  t ype emp lo yee pens ion f und p lans ,  as  th is  p l an is  unab le  to  ra t iona l l y 
ca lcu la te  amounts  o f  pens ion assets  cor respond ing to  the Compan y’s  cont r ibu t ion ,  the  Group adopts  an 
account ing p rocedure that  t reats  the p lan as  be ing equ iva lent  to  a  def ined cont r ibu t ion  p lan.    
 
 
Def ined benef i t  p lans  
 
Reconc i l ia t ion  o f  the  beg inn ing ba lance and the end ing ba lance o f  re t i rement  benef i t  ob l iga t ions  

    
 (Not e)  The above tab le  inc ludes  re t i rement  benef i t  ob l iga t ions  o f  the  conso l ida t ed subs id ia r ies  app l ying  

 the  s imp l i f ied  method.  
 
 
Reconc i l ia t ion  o f  the  beg inn ing ba lance and the end ing ba lance o f  p lan assets  

   
 

Reconc i l ia t ion  o f  re t i remen t  benef i t  ob l iga t ions  and p lan assets  and net  def ined benef i t  l iab i l i t y and net  
def ined benef i t  asset  reco rded on the conso l ida ted ba lance sheet  

   

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
¥62,215 ¥63,216 $571,671

2,372 2,584 21,795
373 374 3,427

2,007 926 18,442
(3,234) (3,480) (29,716)

(68) (1,405) (625)
¥63,665 ¥62,215 $584,995

Retirement benefit obligations at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial differences incurred
Retirement benefits paid
Other
Retirement benefit obligations at end of year

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Plan assets at beginning of year ¥43,979 ¥44,995 $404,107
Expected return on plan assets 848 870 7,792 
Actuarial differences incurred (1,462) (943) (13,434)
Employer’s contribution 1,085 1,269 9,970 
Retirement benefits paid (2,398) (2,212) (22,034)
Plan assets at end of year ¥42,052 ¥43,979 $386,401

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
¥61,020 ¥59,657 $560,691

Plan assets (42,052) (43,979) (386,401)
18,968 15,678 174,290 
2,645 2,558 24,304 

21,613 18,236 198,594 
Defined benefit liability 21,613 18,236 198,594 

¥21,613 ¥18,236 $198,594

Funded retirement benefit obligations

Net liability and asset recorded on the consolidated balance sheet

Net liability and asset recorded on the consolidated balance sheet
Unfunded retirement benefit obligations

Millions of yen
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Ret i rement  benef i t  expens es  

   
 (Not e)  Ret i rement  benef i t  expenses  o f  the  conso l ida t ed subs id ia r ies  app l ying the s imp l i f ied  method a re  

inc luded in  se rv ice  cos t .  
 

Remeasurements  o f  def ined benef i t  p lans ,  bef ore  t ax e f fec t  

    
 
Accumu la t ed remeasurements  o f  def ined benef i t  p lans ,  before  t ax e f fec t  

   
 
 
P lan assets  
Components  o f  p lan assets  by ma in  categor ies  were as  fo l lows :  

  
(Not e)  The ra t io  o f  p lan as sets  used to  fund a  re t i rement  benef i t  t r us t  es tab l ished for  co rpo ra t e  pens ion   

p lans  was  6% for  each o f  t he  yea rs  ended March 31,  2020 and 2019.  
 
 

Method used to  dete rmine expec ted long- te rm ra te  o f  re tu rn  on p lan assets  
The expec ted long- te rm ra t e  o f  re turn  on p lan assets  is  based on the cu r rent  and expec ted a l loc at ion  o f  p lan  
assets  and the cu r rent  and  expec ted long - te rm ra t e  o f  re tu rn  on the va r ious  p lan  assets .  
 
Assumpt ions  used fo r  ac tuar ia l  ca lcu la t ion   
The assumpt ions  used for  t he  ac tua r ia l  ca lcu la t ion  a t  the  end o f  the  yea rs  ended March 31,  2020 and 2019 
were as  fo l lows :  

  
   
 
Def ined cont r ibu t ion  p lans  
The amount  cont r ibu ted to  def ined cont r ibu t ion  p lans  by the Compan y and cer t a in  conso l ida t ed subs id ia r ies  
was  ¥456 mi l l i on  ($4,190 t housand)  and ¥385 mi l l i on  for  the  f isca l  years  ended March 31,  2020 and 2019,  
respec t ive l y.   
 
Mul t i -emp lo ye r  t ype emp loyee pens ion fund p lans  
The to ta l  amount  cont r ibu ted to  mu l t i - emp lo ye r  t ype emp lo yee pens ion fund p lans ,  wh ich a re  ca lcu la ted in  
the same way as  def ined c ont r ibu t ion  p lans ,  was  ¥6 mi l l i on  ($55 thousand)  and  ¥10 mi l l i on  fo r  the  years  
ended March 31,  2020 and  2019,  respec t ive l y.  

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
¥2,372 ¥2,584 $21,795

373 374 3,427 
(848) (870) (7,792)
(64) (64) (588)
505 1,333 4,640 
138 154 1,268 

¥2,476 ¥3,511 $22,751Retirement benefit expenses for defined benefit plans

Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost
Amortization of actuarial differences
Additional retirement benefits

Service cost – benefits earned during the year
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
(¥64) (¥64) ($588)

(2,964) (536) (27,235)
(¥3,028) (¥600) ($27,823)

Prior service cost
Actuarial differences

Total

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
(¥878) (¥942) ($8,068)
6,860 3,896 63,034 

¥5,982 ¥2,954 $54,966

Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized actuarial differences

Total

Millions of yen

2020 2019
Debt securities 23% 25% 
Equity securities 13    24    
General accounts 41    39    
Cash and deposits 11    1    
Other 12    11    

Total 100% 100% 

2020 2019
Discount rates 0.6% 0.6% 
Expected rates of return on plan assets 2.0% 2.0% 
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11.   ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL 

 Assets  p ledg ed as  c ol l at era l  f or  c us t omers ’ depos i t s  o f  ¥10 6 mi l l io n  ($974 t housand)  and ¥10 6 mi l l ion  a t  
Marc h 31,  2020 and  2019 res pec t iv el y,  sec ured lo ng- t er m debt  of  ¥7 mi l l i on  a t  March 31,  2019 and ac count s  
payab le o f  ¥20 mi l l ion  at  Marc h 31,  2019,  were as  f o l lows :  

 
    
 
 
 

 
12.  NET ASSETS 
 

The s ign i f ic ant  p rov is ions  o f  the  Japanese Compan ies  Ac t  ( the  “Compan ies  Ac t ” )  tha t  a f fec t  f inanc ia l  and 
account ing mat te rs  are  summar ized be low:  
 
1 .  D iv id ends :  

The Compan ies  Ac t  a l lows  Jap anese  c ompanies  t o pay  d iv iden ds  at  an y t ime du r ing the f is ca l year,  i n 
add i t i on  to  t he yea r-end d iv id end , upon res o lu t ion at  t he  s t oc kho lders  mee t ing.  Fo r  J apanes e c ompan ies  
tha t  mee t  c e rt a in  c r i t e r ia  s uch  as  hav ing a  board of  d i re c tors ,  independent  a ud i t o rs ,  a board of  c orpora t e  
aud i to rs  an d on e- year t e rms  of  s erv ic e f or  d i rec t ors  ra t her  t han  t he t wo- year norma l t e r m prov ided by t he  
art ic les  of  inco rpora t ion,  the boa rd of  d i rec t ors  may dec lare  d iv id ends (except  f o r  d iv i den ds  in  k in d ) i f  t he  
compan y has  p resc r ibed s o in  i t s  a rt i c les  of  inc orpo rat ion.  The  Compan ies  Ac t  pe rm it s  J apanes e 
compan ies t o  d is t r ibu t e d iv idends  in  ki nd  (no nc as h ass et s)  t o s t oc kho lde rs  s ub jec t to  c er t a in  l im it at ions  
and add it ion a l requ i r ement s .  The Comp an ies  Ac t  prov ides  ce rt a i n l im it a t i ons o n t he a mounts  ava i lab le f or  
d iv id ends and t he purc has e  of  t reasu ry s t oc k.  The max imum amo unt  that  t he Company c an  d is t r i bu t e  as  
d iv id ends is  dete rmined based on t he nonc ons o l ida t ed f inanc ia l  s ta t ements  of  t he  Compan y in  
acc ordanc e w it h  t he  Compan ies Ac t  and regu la t ions .  
 

2 .  Inc reas es / dec reas es  in  and  t rans f ers  of  c ommon stoc k,  rese rv e a nd s urp lus :  
The Compan ies  Ac t  requi re s  that  an  amount  equal  t o 10%  of  d iv idends  mus t  be appr opr iat ed as  a le ga l 
res erv e  (of  re t a ined earn in gs ) or as  add it iona l  pa id- i n  c ap it a l  (o f  c ap it a l  s urp lus ) ,  depend ing  on t he 
equ i t y  acc ount  c harge d upon t he payment  of  s uc h d iv i den ds ,  unt i l  t he  t ot a l  agg regat e amou nt  of  legal  
res erv e  and add i t io na l  paid- i n c ap i t a l  equa ls  25% of  the  c ap i ta l s t oc k.  Unde r t he Compan ies  Ac t ,  a l l  
add i t i on a l pa id- i n c ap i t a l  and a l l  le ga l res e rv e may be  t rans f e rred  t o ot her  c ap i t a l  s urplus  and ret a in e d 
earn ings,  r es pect iv e l y,  and are  po tent ia l l y av ai lab le  fo r  d iv idends .  The Co mpanies  Ac t a ls o prov ides  t hat  
commo n s t oc k,  l ega l res erv e,  add i t io na l  pa id- i n c ap i t a l ,  o t he r cap it a l  su rp lus  an d reta in ed ea rn ings  can  
be t ransf er red among t he acc ounts  under  c er t a i n c ond i t ions  upo n res o lu t ion  of  t he s t ock ho lders .  Under  
the  Compan ie s Ac t ,  the  ent i re  amount  pa id  fo r  new sha res  mus t  be des ignat ed as  common s tock.  However ,  
a  compan y may,  b y a  reso lu t ion  o f  the  boa rd  o f  d i rec t ors ,  des ignate  an amount  not  exceed ing one ha l f  
o f  the  p r ice  o f  the  new sha res  as  add i t iona l  pa id - in  cap i ta l ,  wh ich is  inc luded in  cap i ta l  surp lus .  
 

3 .  Treas ur y s t ock:   
The Compan ies  Ac t  prov ides  f or  J apanes e c ompan ie s  to  repu rchas e or  d ispos e of  t reas u ry st ock.  The 
amou nt  of  t reas ury s t oc k p urc has ed,  howeve r,  c annot  exc eed the amount  av ai lab le  fo r d is t r ibut ion  to  the 
s toc kho lde rs , an amoun t  wh ic h is  det er mined  b y a  s pec i f i c  f o rmu la .   
 
 
 

 

13.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

At  Marc h 31,  2020 and 2 019 , the Co mpany and ce rt a in  c ons o l idat ed s ubs id ia r ies  were cont i nge nt ly l i ab le f o r  
the  f o l lowing:  

 
 
  

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Cash and time deposits ¥2 ¥22 $18
Property, plant and equipment ― net of accumulated depreciation 259 901 2,380

¥261 ¥923 $2,398

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
As guarantor of indebtedness
 Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 3,099 3,342 28,476
 Employees (housing loans) 3 7 28

¥3,102 ¥3,349 $28,503

Millions of yen
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14. OFF-BALANCE SHEET LEASE TRANSACTIONS 

Fut u re min imum lease rec e ipt s  as  less or  under  non- cance la b le  ope rat ing  leas es  f or t he  rema in ing l eas e  
per i ods  as  of  Marc h 31,  202 0 and 2019 were ¥6, 635 mi l l io n ($60,9 67 t hous and) and ¥ 6, 925 mi l l io n ,  
res pec t ive ly,  of  wh ic h ¥673 mi l l ion  ($6, 184 thous and)  and ¥700 mi l l io n,  respec t iv e ly,  we re due w it h i n one  
yea r.  
 
 
 
 

15.  SEGMENT INFORMATION 

1.  Overv iew of  repo r tab le  segments   
Toyobo ’s  repo r tab le  segments  a l low i t  to  acqu ire  f inanc ia l  da ta  that  can be separated in t o  var ious  
components  o f  the  corpora t e  group.  The segment  resu l t s  are  rev iewed on a  regu lar  bas is  in  o rde r  to  a l low  
the h ighes t  dec is ion mak ing body t o  determine t he a l locat ion  o f  management  resources  and eva luate  
earn ings  pe r fo rmance.  Toyobo’s  bas ic  organ izat ion  compr ises  bus iness  headquar te rs  and bus iness  
d iv is ions  w i t h in  t he head o f f ice  separated b y the t ype,  natu re  and  market  fo r  produc ts  and serv ices .  Eac h  
bus iness  headquar te rs  and  bus iness  d iv is ion formu la t es  comprehens ive s t ra teg ies  for  i t s  domes t ic  and 
overseas  ope ra t ions  and conduc ts  bus iness  ac t iv i t ies .  

 
Accord ing l y,  To yobo organ i zes  bus iness  segments  b y p roduc ts  and se rv ices .  I t s  f iv e  repo r tab le  segments  
are  “F i lms  and Func t iona l  Po l ymers , ”  “ Indus t r ia l  Mat er ia ls , ”  “Hea l thca re , ”  “Text i les  and T rad ing ”  and  
“Rea l  Es ta te . ”  The “F i lms  and  Func t iona l  Po l ymers ”  segment  manuf ac tures  and  se l ls  pac kag ing f i lm,  
indus t r ia l  f i lm,  indus t r ia l  adhes ives ,  eng ineer ing p las t i cs ,  photo  func t iona l  mat er ia ls  and o the r  p roduc ts .  
The “ Indus t r ia l  Mate r ia ls ”  segment  manufac tu res  and  se l ls  f ibe r  mate r ia ls  fo r  automot ive  app l ica t ions ,  
h igh -per f ormance f ibe rs ,  non-woven fab r ics  and o t he r  produc ts .  The “Hea l t hcare”  segment  manufac tu res  
and se l ls  b io -p roduc ts  such as  enz ymes  for  d iagnos t ic  reagents ,  cont rac t  manufac tur ing  o f  
pha rmaceut ica ls ,  med ica l -use membranes ,  med ic a l  equ ipment  and equ ipment  dev ices ,  func t iona l  f i l t e rs ,  
wate r  t reat ment  membranes  and o ther  produc ts .  The “Text i les  and T rad ing”  segment  manufac tu res  and  
se l ls  func t iona l  tex t i les ,  appare l  p roduc ts ,  appare l  tex t i les ,  appare l  f ibers  and o t her  p roduc ts .  The “Rea l  
Es ta te”  segment  leases  and manages  rea l  es ta te .  
 

2 .  The met hods  of  account ing  f o r bus ines s segments  a re  t he s ame as  t hos e s t at ed in Not e  2 , “S ign i f ic ant  
Account ing  P o l i c ies . ”  P ro f i t  of  t he  repor t ing s eg ments  i s  operat ing  prof i t .  Trans f e rs  among s egment s a re 
bas ed on ma rket  p r ic es .   
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(Not es )  1 .  Ot he r bus iness es  inc lude des ign and c ons t ruc t ion of  bu i l d ings ,  equ ipme nt ,  etc . ,  in fo rmat ion 

serv ic es ,  log i st ics  se rv ic es  and  o t he r it ems .  
2.  ( a)  E l im ina t io n o r Corpor at e f or  s egment  pro f i t  ad jus t ment  of  ¥ -3 ,512 mi l l io n ($ -32, 271 thous and)  

i nc lu des  el im in at ions  of  i nt ersegment  t rans ac t ions  of  ¥-389 mi l l ion  ($ -3,5 74 t housand)  and 
compan yw ide expens es  t ha t  are not  a l loc at ed ac ross  repor tab le segments  of  ¥ -3 , 123 mi l l ion  
($-28, 696 thous and).  Th e pr inc ipa l c omponen ts  o f  compa nywide expens es  are  t ho se rel at ed t o  
bas ic  resea rc h and dev elopmen t .  

(b)  E l iminat ion  or  C orpo rat e f o r segment  ass ets  ad jus t men t of  ¥39,391 mi l l io n  ($ 361, 950 
thous and) i nc ludes  c ompanyw id e as s ets  t hat  are  not  a l loc at ed ac ross  report ab le s eg ments  
and amount  to  ¥79,704 mi l l ion  ($732 , 372 thousand) .   

(c )  E l im in at i on or  Corpo ra t e f o r  c ap i t a l  exp end i t ure  of  ¥1,446 mi l l ion  ($13, 287 t hous and) is  t he 
amou nt  o f  capi t a l  inv est men t re l at ed  t o res ea rc h and dev e lopmen t.  

3.  S egme nt  p ro f i t  has  been  adjus t ed wi th  ope rat ing p rof i t  on  t he c ons ol i da t ed  f inanc ia l  s t at emen ts .   
  

Net sales Intersegment Depreciation
Year ended to external net sales and Segment Segment and Capital
March 31, 2020 customers transfer amounts profit assets amortization expenditure

Industrial Materials 65,405 270 65,675 1,035 81,278 2,723 6,848 

Healthcare 39,412 2,086 41,498 5,547 49,750 3,002 3,825 

Textiles and Trading 61,328 525 61,853 561 68,382 1,680 1,808 

Real Estate 4,405 393 4,798 1,481 48,710 656 376 
329,383 3,361 332,744 25,165 427,511 15,182 34,658 

Other businesses 10,224 22,472 32,696 1,141 21,972 336 341 

Total 339,607 25,833 365,440 26,306 449,483 15,518 34,999 

Elimination or Corporate - (25,833) (25,833) (3,512) 39,391 1,487 1,446 
Consolidated ¥339,607 ￥- ¥339,607 ¥22,794 ¥488,874 ¥17,005 ¥36,445 

Net sales Intersegment Depreciation
Year ended to external net sales and Segment Segment and Capital
March 31, 2020 customers transfer amounts profit assets amortization expenditure

Industrial Materials 600,983 2,481 603,464 9,510 746,835 25,021 62,924 

Healthcare 362,143 19,168 381,310 50,969 457,135 27,584 35,147 

Textiles and Trading 563,521 4,824 568,345 5,155 628,338 15,437 16,613 

Real Estate 40,476 3,611 44,087 13,608 447,579 6,028 3,455 
3,026,583 30,883 3,057,466 231,232 3,928,246 139,502 318,460 

Other businesses 93,945 206,487 300,432 10,484 201,893 3,087 3,133 

Total 3,120,527 237,370 3,357,898 241,716 4,130,139 142,589 321,593 

Elimination or Corporate - (237,370) (237,370) (32,270) 361,950 13,664 13,287 
Consolidated $3,120,527 $－ $3,120,528 $209,446 $4,492,089 $156,253 $334,880 

Millions of yen

Net sales

Films and
Functional Polymers

¥158,833 ¥87 ¥158,920 ¥16,541 ¥179,391 ¥7,121 ¥21,801 

Films and
Functional Polymers

$1,459,460 $799 $1,460,259 $200,322 

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Net sales

$151,989 $1,648,360 $65,432 



 

44 
 

    
(Not es )  1 .  Ot he r bus iness es  inc lude des ign and c ons t ruc t ion of  bu i l d ings ,  equ ipme nt ,  etc . ,  in fo rmat ion 

serv ic es ,  log i st ics  se rv ic es  and  o t he r it ems .  
2.  (a) E l im ina t io n o r Corporat e f or  segment  pro f i t  ad jus t ment  of  ¥ -2 ,936 mi l l io n i nc lu des  el im inat i ons  

of  in t ersegment  t rans ac t i ons  of  ¥ -154 mi l l ion  and c ompan yw id e ex pens es  t hat  are  not  
a l loc at ed  ac ross  report ab le s eg ments  o f  ¥ -2 , 782 mi l l i on.  The p r i nc ip al  co mpone nts  of  
compan yw ide expens es  a re  t hos e re l at ed to  bas ic resea rc h and dev e lopment .  

(b)  E l iminat ion  or  C orpo rat e f o r segment  ass ets  ad jus t men t of  ¥47,530 mi l l io n  inc lu des  
compan yw ide ass ets  t hat  a re not  a l locat ed across  re po r tab le  s egment s and a moun t  to ¥85, 531  
m il l i on .  

(c )  E l im in at i on or  Corpo ra t e f o r  c ap i t a l  exp end i t ure  of  ¥1,321 mi l l ion  i s the amount  o f  cap it a l 
i nv es t ment  re lat ed t o res earc h and dev e lop me nt .  

3.  S egme nt  p ro f i t  has  been  adjus t ed wi th  ope rat ing p rof i t  on  t he c ons ol i da t ed  f inanc ia l  s t at emen ts .   
 
 
Sa les  in  J apan,  S out heas t  As ia  and o t her  areas  were as  f o l lows :  

  
 
P r inc ipa l c oun tr ies  and areas  in eac h s egmen t  are:   
Sout heast  As ia:  China,  Ko rea ,  Ta iwan,  Ma lays ia ,  I ndones ia ,  Tha i la nd,  e t c .  
Oth er  a reas:  USA,  Germany,  Spa in,  B razi l ,  S au di  Ar ab ia,  etc .   
 
 
I mpai rment  loss  o f  f ixed as s et s :  

 
*1  Impa ir ment  loss  of  f i xed ass ets  of  t he f is ca l  yea r ended  Marc h 31,  2019 is  omit ted bec aus e t he neces s it y  
of  i t s d isc los u re  is  c ons ide red  immat e r ia l .  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Net sales Intersegment Depreciation
Year ended to external net sales and Segment Segment and Capital
March 31, 2019 customers transfer amounts profit assets amortization expenditure

Industrial Materials 66,540 317 66,857 2,620 84,779 2,480 4,094 

Healthcare 34,675 2,453 37,128 5,170 44,590 2,826 3,066 

Textiles and Trading 64,585 483 65,068 913 69,122 1,410 2,731 

Real Estate 4,197 456 4,653 1,572 49,112 588 468 
326,238 3,769 330,007 24,002 398,437 14,150 23,760 

Other businesses 10,460 14,137 24,597 661 15,080 301 431 

Total 336,698 17,906 354,604 24,663 413,517 14,451 24,191 

Elimination or Corporate - (17,906) (17,906) (2,936) 47,530 1,372 1,321 
Consolidated ¥336,698 ￥- ¥336,698 ¥21,727 ¥461,047 ¥15,823 ¥25,512 

¥6,846 ¥13,401 

Millions of yen

Net sales

¥13,727 ¥150,834 Films and
Functional Polymers

¥156,241 ¥60 ¥156,301 

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Japan ¥229,834 ¥233,959 $2,111,863
Southeast Asia 73,029 70,237 671,037
Other areas 36,744 32,502 337,627
Total ¥339,607 ¥336,698 $3,120,527

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Films and Functional Polymers ¥825 $7,581
Industrial Materials 1,486  13,654  
Healthcare 84  772  
Textiles and Trading － *1 － 
Real Estate 2  18  
Other businesses － － 
Total 2,397  22,025  
Elimination or Corporate － － 
Consolidated ¥2,397  $22,025  

Millions of yen
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Amort i za t ion and ba lanc e o f goodwi l l :  

 
 
 
Ga in  on Bar ga in  Purc has e by Repor t ab le S egment :  
F isc a l year  ended Ma rc h 31,  202 0 
In t he “F i lms and Func t io na l Po lymers ” bus ines s  s egme nt ,  the Compan y acqu i red sha res  of  TOYOBO FI LM 
SOL UTI ONS LIM ITED and PT.  INDONESI A TO YOBO FILM SOLUTI ONS and made  th es e c ompanies  
conso l idat ed s ubs id ia r i es .  In c on ju nc t io n w it h t h is,  ga in  on n ega t iv e  good wi l l  of  ¥65 m il l i on  ($5 97 t hous and)  
was  rec orded .  
 
F isc a l year  ended Ma rc h 31,  201 9 
In t he “Heal thc a re ” bus ines s  s egment ,  t he Compan y acqu i red add it io na l s hares  of  A rab ian J apanes e  
Membr ane  Compan y,  LLC,  wh ich  was  an  af f i l ia t e acc ount ed fo r us i ng equ i t y met hod,  and  made t h is  comp any  
a c ons o l ida t ed s ubs idi ar y.  In con ju nc t io n wi t h t h is ,  ga in on  n ega t iv e  good wi l l  of  ¥175 mi l l io n was  rec orded.  
 
 
 
 

16.  LAND REVALUATION 

App ly ing t he law  on rev a luat i on  o f land,  t he  Company,  a c ons o l i da t ed s ubs id i ar y  and an af f i l ia t e acc ount ed  
for  us in g t he equ i t y met hod  rev a lu at ed lan d f or  bus iness  us e on Marc h 31,  2 002 and  i nc luded t he  i nc reas e,  
net  o f  inc ome  t axes  and non-c on tro l l i ng in t eres ts ,  in net  assets .   As o f  Marc h 31,  2020 and 2019,  t he  f a ir  v a lue  
of  t h is  land was  lower  t han book va lue by ¥33, 945 mi l l io n ($311 ,9 08 t hous and)  and ¥ 34,437 m il l i on ,  
res pec t ive ly.  Anot her  c ons o l ida t ed s ubs id iar y r ev alua ted i t s  land  f o r bus ines s us e on  Ma rc h 31,  200 0 an d 
i nc lu ded the inc reas e,  net  o f  inc ome t axes  and no n-c on tro l l i ng in t eres ts ,  in n et  assets .   As o f  Marc h 31,  2020  
and 2019,  t he fa i r  va lue of  th is  land was  lower t han book va lu e by  ¥3, 184 mi l l i on ($29, 257 thous and) and  
¥3, 179 mi l l i on ,  res pec t iv e ly.  
 
 
 
 
  

Films and Functional Polymers ￥ － ￥ － ￥ － ￥ － $ -  $ -  
Industrial Materials － － － － － － 
Helthcare － － 115  － － － 
Textiles and Trading － － － － － － 
Real Estate － － － － － － 
Other businesses － － － － － － 
Total － － 115  － － － 
Elimination or Corporate － － － － － － 
Consolidated ￥ － ￥ － ¥115  ￥ － $ -  $ -  

2020
Amortization
of goodwill

Balance of
goodwill

Amortization
of goodwill

Amortization
of goodwill

Balance of
goodwill

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Balance of
goodwill

Millions of yen
2020 2019
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17.  INVESTMENT AND RENTAL PROPERTY 
The Compan y  and so me of  i t s  c ons ol ida t ed subs id ia r i es  hold  inv es tment  and rent a l of f ice  bu i ld i ngs  ( inc lud in g  
l and ) loc at ed in  Os aka,  J ap an and o ther  a reas .  For  t he f i sc a l  ye ars  ended Marc h  31 ,  2020 and 2019,  t he  rent a l  
i nc ome (p r inc ipa l  r enta l inc ome is  rec orded in  net  s a les,  and pr inc ipa l  rent al  expens es  are rec o rde d in cos t  
of  s a les ) on t hese rea l  es ta te  proper t ies was  ¥2, 105 mi l l ion  ($19, 342 t hous and)  and ¥1,918 mi l l ion ,  
res pec t ive ly.   The ga in on t he s a le of  f ixed asset s ,  rec orded  in  o ther  inco me (expens es, )  was  ¥46 mi l l i on  fo r  
the  yea r  ended March 31,  2019.  The los s  on  t he s ale  o f  f ixed ass ets ,  rec o rded in  orde r inc ome (exp ens es , )  
was  ¥33 mi l l ion  ($303 t housand)  and ¥182 mi l l i on  fo r  the  yea rs  ended March 31,  2020 and 2019,  respec t ive l y.  
 
The fo l low ing  t ab le  s umma r izes  t he  c ar ry i ng a mount ,  t he  c hange  dur in g t he f isc a l yea r and t he es t imat ed fa i r  
va lue of  inv est ment  and r ent a l p roper t y.  

 
(Not es )  1 .  The ca r r ying amount  repres ents  the net  amount  ca lcu la ted as  the acqu is i t ion  cos t  less  
accumu la ted deprec ia t ion  and impa i rment  loss .  

2 .  The change du r ing the f i sca l  yea r  ended March 31,  2020 and 2019 was  a t t r ibu t ab le  ma in l y to  a  
dec rea se in  the s a le  o f  as se ts  o f ¥1,235 mi l l ion  ($ 11, 348 t hous and)  and ¥289 mi l l i on  
respec t ive l y.   

3 .  The fa i r  va lue a t  Marc h 31,  2020 and 2019 was  based on rea l  es ta te  appra isa l  repo r ts  prov ided  
by exte rna l  rea l  es ta te  app ra ise rs  fo r  ma jo r  p roper t ies  and the index cons idered  to  re f lec t  the  
cur rent  market  pr ice  f or  o t her  prope r t ies .  

 
 
 
 

18.  CASH FLOW  INFORMATION 

Cas h on  hand ,  read i l y av a i la b le depos i t s  and s ho rt - t er m h igh ly l iqu id  i nv es t me nts  wit h mat ur i t ies not  
exc eed in g t hree mont hs  at  the t ime of  pu rc has e are c ons idered t o  be c as h and cash equ iv alen ts  in prepar i ng  
the  c ons o l id at ed  s ta tement s  of  c as h f lows .  
 
1.  The reconc i l ia t ion  of  cas h and t ime depos i t s  in  the c onso l i da ted ba lanc e s heets  a nd c as h and c as h 

equ i va lents  in t he c ons o l idat ed s t at ement s  of  c as h f lows  as  of  Marc h 31,  2020 and 2 019  was  as  fo l lows :  
 

   
 
2.  M ajo r bre akdown of  ass ets  and l iab i l i t i es  of  new ly  cons o l idat ed s ubs id ia r i es  through s t oc k acqu i s i t io n  

dur i ng t he f isc a l ye ar ended Marc h 31,  2020 
 

Fo l lowings  are  t he  comp os it ion o f  ass ets  and  l ia b i l i t ies  as of  t he beg inn ing o f  t he c ons o l idat ion o f  
TOYOBO FI LM SOLUTIONS LIMITED and PT.  I NDONESIA TOYOB O FI LM S OLUTIONS , which were new ly 
acq u ired t h rough s t ock ac qu is i t ion,  t he  rela t ionsh ip be tween t he ac qu is i t i on  p r ic e of  t he  s a id  c ompan ies ’ 
sha res ,  and t he ac qu is i t i on  cos t  (net )  inc ur red f or  t he  ac qu is it ion  o f  the c ompan ies  t hereof .  

   

 
 
 
  

2020 2020
Carrying amount at beginning of year ¥33,398  ¥33,715  $306,882  
Change during the year (1,968) (317) (18,083)
Carrying amount at end of year 31,430  33,398  288,799  
Fair value on March 31, 2020 and 2019 ¥37,789  ¥38,148  $347,230  

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2019

2020 2020
Cash and time deposits in the consolidated balance sheets ¥25,247  ¥22,318  $231,986  
Time deposits maturing after three months (163) (151) (1,498)
Cash and time deposits in the consolidated statements of cash flows ¥25,084  ¥22,167  $230,488  

Millions of yen Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2019

2020 2020
Current assets ¥13,196  $121,253  
Noncurrent assets 5,577  51,245  
Current liabilities (8,614) (79,151)
Long-term liabilities (1,111) (10,209)
Negative goodwill (65) (597)
Acquisition price of the stock 8,983  82,542  
Cash and time deposits (186) (1,709)
Net cash paid for the acquisition ¥8,797  $80,832  

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
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19.  COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Amount s  r ec lass i f ie d t o  prof it  in  t he  c ur rent  pe r iod t hat  were rec ogn ize d in  ot he r c omprehensiv e i nc ome in  
the  c ur rent  or  prev ious  pe r i od and  t he t ax ef f ec ts  fo r each c omponent  of  o ther  compr ehens ive  inco me wer e 
as  f o l lows :  

  
 
 
 
  

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities
  Increase (decrease) during the year (¥6,887) ¥1,580  ($63,282)
  Reclassification adjustments (438) 66  (4,025)
Subtotal, before tax (7,325) 1,646  (67,307)
  Tax (expense) benefit 2,273  (611) 20,886  
Subtotal, net of tax (5,052) 1,035  (46,421)

Deferred gains and losses on hedges
  Increase during the year 19  73  175  
  Reclassification adjustments 16  (49) 147  
Subtotal, before tax 35  24  322  
  Tax (expense) benefit (10) (8) (92)
Subtotal, net of tax 25  16  230  

Foreign currency translation adjustments
  Decrease during the year (1,707) (124) (15,685)
  Reclassification adjustments  -   -   -  
Subtotal, before tax (1,707) (124) (15,685)
  Tax (expense) benefit 2  1  18  
Subtotal, net of tax (1,705) (123) (15,667)

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
  Decrease during the year (3,469) (1,869) (31,875)
  Reclassification adjustments 441  1,269  4,052  
Subtotal, before tax (3,028) (600) (27,823)
  Tax (expense) benefit 939  187  8,628  
Subtotal, net of tax (2,089) (413) (19,195)

Share of other comprehensive income of associates
accounted for using equity method
  Increase during the year (52) (172) (478)
  Reclassification adjustments  -   -   -  
Subtotal, net of tax (52) (172) (478)

Total other comprehensive income (¥8,873) ¥343  ($81,531)

Millions of yen
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20.  LOSS DUE TO FIRE 

Th is  is  a b rea kdown of  t he los s  due to  the f i r e  acc iden t  t hat  occ ur red  at  t he Company’s  Ts uruga Res earc h and 
Produc t i on C ent er  No.  2  on Sept emb er  6 ,  2018.  

 
Cons equent ly,  the Co mpany reco rded an insu ranc e income of  ¥10. 6 bi l l io n f or  i nsu rance rece iv ed.  
 
 
 
 

21.   BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 

The Compan y  pass ed  a  res o lut ion  a t  i t s  Board of  D i rec t ors  meet i ng he ld  on Ma y 22,  2019 t o  make  Te i j in  F i lm 
So lu t ions  L im i t ed (TFS ) and PT.  Indones ia Te i j in  F i lm So lut ion s ( I TFS ) i t s  subs id ia r i es  t hrough s t oc k 
acq u is i t io n,  and ente red  in t o  a  s toc k t rans f er ag reement  wi t h  t he f i rms ’ s ha reh o ld e r,  TEIJ IN L im it ed,  on t he  
same day.  The Company comp le t ed t he  s tock ac qu is i t ion  on Oc tober  1,  2019.  Ac co rd ing ly,  t he Group als o  
cha nge d t he names  of  t he  two s ubs id i ar ies  t o TOYOBO FI LM SOLUTIONS LIMITED an d PT.  I NDONESI A 
TOYOBO FI LM SOLUTIONS,  res pec t iv el y.  
 
1 .  Ove rv ie w of  ac qu is i t io n  
(1)  Na me and  nat ure  of  t he bus iness  of  t he ac qu i red c ompan ies  

Na me:  
-  Te i j in  F i lm So lu t ions  L im i t ed 
-  PT.  Indo nes ia Te i j in  F i lm So lut ions  

Nat ure of  t he  bus in ess es :  
-  Te i j in  F i lm So lu t ions  L im i t ed  :   P roduc t ion and  sa les  of  po lyes t er  f i lm  
-  PT.  Indo nes ia Te i j in  F i lm So lut ions   :   P roduc t ion and s ales  of  po lyes te r f i lm 

 
(2)  The pur pose  o f  the  ac qu is i t io n  

W it h TFS as  i t s  subs id iar y,  t he Co mpa ny c an t ake adv ant age of  i t s  a dv anc ed dev elopment  a nd produc t ion  
tec hno log ies  and broad produc t  l i neup.  Th is  wi l l  s t reng then the Co mp any’s  abi l i t y  t o  dev e lop and pro duc e 
h igh -per f orma nc e f i lm produc ts  and fu r t her  s o l id i f y  i t s  f i lm bus iness es .  P lac ing ITFS under  t he 
Co mp any’s  umbre l la  w i l l  bo ls t e r i t s  ov e rs eas  p roduct ion c apab i l i t i es ,  he lp i ng t o deve lop i t s  f i lm bus ines s 
i nt o  a g lob a l  ope ra t ion .   
 

(3 )  Dat e of  ac qu is i t io n  
Oc t obe r 1 ,  2019 
 

(4)  Lega l  f o rm of  ac qu is i t ion  
Acquis it ion o f  st oc k f o r cons id erat ion  in  c as h 
 

(5)  Na me of  t he  c ompa nies  a f t er  acqu is i t ion  
-  TOYOBO FI LM SOLUTIONS LIMITED 
-  PT.  I NDO NESIA TOYOBO F I LM SOL UTI ONS 

 
(6)  Rat io on v ot ing r igh t  ac qui red  

-  TOYOBO FI LM SOLUTIONS LIMITED:  100%  
-  PT.  I NDO NESIA TOYOBO F I LM SOL UTI ONS: 1 00%  

 
(7)  Grounds  f o r det er min in g ac qu ir ing  c ompany  

The Company  is  t he acqu i r ing c ompan y bec aus e t he Company ac qu ired  s tock f or  c ons id era t i on in cash.  
 
2.  Per iod  f or  t he res u l t  of  ope ra t io ns  of  ac qu ir ed c ompanies  inc luded i n t he cons o l ida t ed f inanc ial  

s tat emen ts  
As  t he acc o unt  c los in g dat e  of  t he acqu i red compan ies  is  Dec ember  31,  w h ic h is  les s than t hree mon ths  
f ro m t hat  o f  the  c ompan y,  the c onso l i dat ed f ina nc ia l s tate men ts  are  p repared bas ed on t he ac qui red  
compan ies ’ f inanc ia l st at eme nts  cov er ing t he p er iod of  t he c onso l idat ed f isc al  year.  A ls o,  w i t h Oc t ob e r  
1,  2019 , deemed  t o be t he ac qu is it ion  dat e,  t he  ea rn ings  pe r f ormanc e of  t he ac qu i red c ompan ies fo r t he 
per i od f ro m Oc tober 1,  2019 t o Dec ember  31,  2019,  is  ref l ec t ed in  t he  c ons o l id at ed  s ta tements  o f  
ope ra t ions .  

 
 

2020 2019 2020
  Cost related to procurement of
  replacement materials ¥1,997 ¥7,856 18,350
  Loss on extinguishment of
  non-current assets and inventories - 2,093 -
  Cost of removing assets and restoration 180 1,747 1,654
  Fixed costs during a closing period - 1,397 -
  Other related costs 935 729 8,591

¥3,112 ¥13,822 $28,595

Millions of yen Thousands of
U.S. dollars
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3.  Acquis it ion c ost  and c ons ide ra t ion pa id  

 
 

4 .  Major  ac qu is i t ion  r e la t ed c os ts  

 
 
5 .  Amount  o f  ga in on  ba rga in  pu rc hase and i t s  c ause  
(1)  Amount  o f  ga in on  ba rga in  pu rc hase inc ur red  

 
(2)  Caus e 

S inc e t he net  amount  of  ac qu ired as s ets  and l iab i l i t ies  exceeded t he ac quis i t ion  pr ice  of  t he s t oc k,  th e  
d if f e renc e is  acc oun ted f or  as  gain on bargain pu rc hase.  

 
6 .  Det a i l s  of  ass ets  and l iab i l i t i es  ac qu ire d at  t he  ac qu is i t i on  dat e  

 
 

7 .  Amount  a l l oc at ed t o int ang ib le  ass et s and i t s  ma jo r c ompo nent  ot he r t han goodwi l l ,  and it s  we ight ed  
ave rag e amort i za t i on per iod 

-  Cus t omer  re la ted ass et s :  ¥900 mi l l i on  ($8, 270 thous and)  
Weight ed av era ge  amor t iz a t ion pe r i od:  18 ye ars  
 
 
 

22.   SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Res olu t ion regar d ing t he  is suanc e of  uns ec u red s t ra ight  bon ds  in  t he J apanese marke t   
 

A t  t he meet ing o f  the Boa rd o f D i rec t o rs  h e ld  on Apr i l  24,  2020,  a  c omprehens iv e res o lu t io n regar d ing t he  
i ss uanc e  o f  uns ec ured s t ra i ght  bonds  in  t he  J apanes e  market  was  pass ed .  

 
The det a i l s are  as f o l l ows :  
(1)  I ss ue a mount :  ¥20. 0  b i l l i on  or  les s .  

Howev er,  mu l t ip le  iss ues  w it h in t he sc ope o f  t h is  a mount  ar e not  ru led  out .  
(2)  I ss ue p r ic e:  ¥100  f or eac h bond wi t h par  v alue of  ¥100  
(3)  I nt eres t  ra te :  Market  y ie ld  of  J apanes e gov ern ment  bon ds  wi th  t he s ame matur i t ies  p l us  1. 0% or  less  
(4)  Payment  da te :  F rom Apr i l  25,  2020 t o Ma rc h 31,  2021  

Howev er,  if  t he  bonds  a re  of f ered du r i ng th is  pe r io d,  pa yments  af te r  t h is  per i od  w i l l  be acc ept ed.  
(5)  Max imum matu r i t y:  5 years  or  more ,  to  10 yea rs  
(6)  Met hod of  r edempt ion :  Fu l l  amoun t on ma t ur i t y 

Howev er,  a re t i rement  by pu rc has e c lause may b e inc l uded.  
(7)  Uses of  funds :  For  red empt ion of  bonds ,  repa yment  o f bo rrowings , pu rc has es  of  p lant  and equ ipment  

( inc ludes  ac qu is i t i on  o f s t oc k t hro ugh mer gers  and  ac quis i t ions ) ,  work ing  cap it a l  and c ap it a l  
i nv es t ments .  

(8)  Spec ia l  p rov is i ons :  These bonds  wi l l  inc l ude a negat iv e pl edg e c la us e.  
(9)  Oth er :  Dec is i ons  regard ing mat t ers cove red in  A r t ic l e 676 of  t he Compan ies  Ac t  and a l l  othe r i t ems  re la t ed 

to  t he iss uanc e of  t he  bonds  w i l l  be  made wi th in  the sc ope  s ta t ed abov e  a t  the dis c ret ion of  the d i rect or  
i n c harge o f t he F inanc e Depar t ment .  

 

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2020
  Type of consideration
    Cash ¥8,983 $82,542
  Acquisition cost ¥8,983 $82,542

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2020
 Advisory fee ¥63 $579

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2020
 Gain on negative goodwill ¥65 $597

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2020
  Current assets ¥13,196 $121,253
  Noncurrent assets 5,577 51,245
  Total assets 18,773 172,498
  Current liabilities 8,614 79,151
  Long-term liabilities 1,111 10,209
  Total liabilities ¥9,725 $89,360
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